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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL PARTNERSHIP FOR EXPANSION 

RACE TO THE TOP INNOVATION FUND 

PROJECT NARRATIVE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Project name: Drew Charter School Partnership for Expansion (DCSPE) 

Spearheaded by Charles R. Drew Charter School (Drew Charter or Drew) in partnership with the Georgia 

Tech Center for Education Integrating Science, Mathematics and Computing (CEISMC); the Georgia 

State University School of Music; the Westminster Schools’ Center for Teaching (CFT); and New Tech 

Network (NTN), DCSPE respectfully requests a $750,000 Enterprise Grant under Priority 4: Developing 

or Expanding Charter Schools, to support the expansion of grades K-8 and addition of grades 9-12  Our 

research indicates that Project-Based Learning (PBL) and Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and 

Mathematics (STEAM) have not yet been harnesses simultaneously in a cradle-to-college pipeline serving 

inner-city students.  DCSPE is a unique partnership with the opportunity to shape the national 

conversation around STEAM education and Project Based-Learning teaching strategies, building upon 

our strong foundation, ensuring students demonstrate mastery in creativity and innovation preparing them 

for success in 21
st
 century colleges and careers. Drew Charter School and DCSPE currently serve 

approximately 1,100 students from birth through grade 8 in Atlanta’s East Lake community.  As part of 

the expansion plan (outlined in Appendix 1), Drew and DCSPE will serve over 1,500 children by year 

two of the grant and over 2,100 in 10 years.  Drew also requests the consideration of $10 million in bond 

funding as an investment in a 21
st
 century learning facility to support innovative teaching and learning for 

1,000 Georgia students. 

A robust and detailed outline of grant activities has been designed to meet these key goals: 

1) Engage in a year of comprehensive planning with DCSPE partners to  

a. Launch a national search for a principal and recruit a talented teaching staff to 

successfully implement STEAM education and PBL teaching strategies. 

b. Develop nationally competitive curriculum to support the expansion of Drew into grades 

9-12 through a focus on STEAM coursework underpinned by PBL teaching strategies. 

2) Expand Drew Charter School, both completing the cradle-to-college education pipeline and 

developing a national model to create a unique high school that will provide real-world learning 

opportunities. 

3) Ensure that Drew students are prepared to excel in 21
st
 century colleges and careers as evidenced 

high achievement on State and nationally-normed assessments and demonstrated mastery in 

critical thinking and problem solving, collaboration, communication and creativity and 

innovation. 
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SECTION I: Partnership Overview 

Entities that make up the partnership: Drew Charter School serves as the official applicant. Drew is 

the oldest charter school in the city of Atlanta, founded in partnership with the East Lake Foundation. 

Drew’s mission is to work together as a community of teachers, staff, students, families and volunteers to 

provide a learning environment that emphasizes high achievement and character development. A gem in 

southeast Atlanta, Drew is an essential element of a community-wide initiative that helps families break 

the intergenerational cycle of poverty. The school is also a key component in a successful neighborhood 

revitalization strategy. 

Drew is divided into academies to create smaller communities within the school. Drew’s pipeline 

begins with early learning partners, East Lake Early Learning Academy and Sheltering Arms Early 

Education and Family Center.  At Drew, grades Pre-K-2 constitutes the Primary Academy; grades 3-5 are 

the Elementary Academy; grades 6-8 are the Junior Academy and Drew is expanding into the Senior 

Academy to serve grades 9-12. With smaller divisions within the school, teachers are able to work in 

teams and across grade levels to share knowledge and strategies. Drew’s rich and academically 

challenging curriculum focuses on STEAM, incorporating high standards and expectations for student 

achievement.  It will newly implement Project-Based Learning teaching strategies in grades 9-12, creating 

a one-of-a-kind cradle-to-college experience for over 2,100 children at full scale. Ultimately, the school 

helps students build robust technical, oral and written communication skills that permit them to learn, 

think critically, express feelings, solve problems, articulate values, persuade, inspire and create.   

Since its opening in August 2000, Drew has proven its specialized approach to education works. 

The school has shown consistently strong academic, financial and organizational growth. Drew began as a 

school of low performance—bottom-ranked among Atlanta Public Schools. Today, Drew is rated in the 

city’s top five schools.  Based on State standardized test scores, Drew ranks number one in serving low-

income and minority children in the district and State.  

Drew is joined in this request by four grant partners—Georgia Tech CEISMC, Georgia State 

University School of Music, New Tech Network (NTN) and Westminster Schools’ CFT —who will 

jointly develop and implement a national model for STEAM education and Project-Based Learning 

strategies at the high school level. Together, DCSPE has made strong organizational commitments to 

research, develop and design an innovative academic program model for grades 9-12 incorporating both 

STEAM and PBL.  We believe that the strength of Drew’s STEAM program will be significantly 

enhanced by PBL’s unique teaching practices, leading to extraordinary outcomes for students in high 

school, college and beyond.  All partners will strategically build upon our respective missions and 

expertise, which are summarized below and described in greater detail in Appendix 2.  
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 Georgia Tech CEISMC: CEISMC advocates for and participates in efforts that promote systemic 

changes leading to improved appreciation and performance in STEM for all K-12 students (especially 

those under-represented in STEM education), and to disseminated best practices to districts. 

 Georgia State University School of Music: The mission of the School of Music is to provide a 

comprehensive, rigorous and innovative academic program that is (1) consistent with the urban 

context and mission of Georgia State University and (2) serves the pursuit of artistic, professional and 

scholarly excellence through experiences of lasting value to all stakeholders. 

 Westminster Schools’ CFT: The mission of the Center is to advance educators and the teaching 

profession in quality and professional stature through programs and resources that promote expertise 

in both the science and art of education. 

 New Tech Network: The New Tech Network (NTN) is a non-profit organization and is a subsidiary 

of Knowledgeworks. The NTN approach – which includes transforming school culture, engaging all 

students through PBL, and infusing technology to foster collaboration and deeper learning – is an 

essential component of Drew’s PBL model to prepare students to succeed in college and the careers 

of tomorrow.   

Partnership’s collective mission and vision: The mission of DCSPE is to develop a rich, rigorous and 

relevant academic program for the expansion of Drew Charter School into grades 9-12, which represents 

a model of teaching and learning for Atlanta, Georgia and the nation ensuring that the next generation is 

prepared to be innovators and problem solvers.  Our vision is to:  

(1) Serve as a model of excellence for STEAM education and PBL teaching strategies that develop 

creative and critical thinkers who can communicate and collaborate in 21
st
 century colleges and 

careers. 

 (2) Develop a model for collaboration, impacting high school graduation rates, college enrollment 

and completion and career readiness through strong partnerships with institutions of higher learning 

and industry experts.  

Past performance of eligible applicant in implementing large, complex and rapidly growing 

projects: Wherever there has been instructional innovation, development and progress, Drew has been at 

the frontline. Since its founding, the school has been committed to taking both a creative and evidence 

based approach to programming with the end goal of supporting student achievement. Drew began to 

serve students in 2000, replacing a previously failing school.  In its first year, Drew served 250 K – 5 

students in a community where just 5% of 5
th
 graders achieved minimum proficiency on standardized 

mathematics tests. In 2012, the most recently completed school year for which achievement results are 

available, 98% of Drew’s 5
th
 graders met or exceeded mathematics standards. Further, in 2001, only 21% 

of Drew’s 4
th
 grade students met or exceeded the Criterion-Referenced Competency Tests (CRCT) State 
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standards for mathematics. Last year, an impressive 95% of 4
th
 graders met or exceeded these standards 

(Please see Appendix 3 for 2012 student achievement results). 

 Throughout its nearly 12-year history, Drew has built its internal capacity through a clear, 

sustainable roadmap for continuous improvement. In 2007, following expansion to grades K-8, Drew 

partnered with Bright from the Start and the Rollins Center at the Atlanta Speech School to create an early 

learning program which has become the demonstration model for over 80 preschools in metropolitan 

Atlanta. During the past school year, children from birth to age three attended the new East Lake Early 

Learning Academy located at the East Lake Family YMCA— extending the cradle-to-college pipeline to 

formally serve children ages six weeks to 8
th
 grade. Further, Drew launched two early intervention 

programs, the Literacy (2008) and Math Centers (2009), which are facilitated by teachers and tutors to 

advance students’ classroom and standardized test performance.  

Drew’s school day is 90 minutes longer than other Atlanta Public Schools; its school year is five 

days longer. Students therefore have the equivalent of roughly 40 extra days on their academic calendars 

per year. The extended time allows teachers to have two daily planning periods. The administration uses 

these sessions to offer a plethora of professional learning experiences. During these periods, students 

engage in enrichment such as Spanish, robotics, dance, chorus, visual arts, orchestra and physical 

education (including swimming and golf). Drew creates a dynamic learning environment that supports 

excellence in core competencies, critical thinking skills and extracurricular areas. 

Drew has relied heavily on grant funding to drive the research and development that allows the 

school to surface and test educational innovations before taking them to scale. This approach has provided 

the means to augment its annual operating budget revenue to sustain and evolve programs that help 

realize Drew’s charter goals. It has also offered a level of accountability to ensure that acquired 

programming and resources resonate and add real value to the school. In many ways, Drew attributes the 

critical juncture it has currently reached in its organizational growth to the aforementioned strategy. 

This is an incredible moment for Drew Charter School. Principal Don Doran was recently 

appointed to the Principal Advisory Board of the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation, one of 15 principals 

selected from across the country. Additionally in 2011, the school was awarded a three-year grant from 

the Georgia Department of Education’s Race to the Top Innovation Fund in partnership with the Georgia 

Tech CEISMC; the Georgia State University School of Music and the Westminster Schools’ CFT to (1) 

enhance professional development for educators in technology and mathematics; (2) to serve as a 

technology demonstration site; and (3) develop best practices for the education community. Taking into 

account the strength of its partnerships, Drew firmly believes it has successfully established the building 

blocks to both technically manage and substantively contribute to the proposed project and expand 

excellent educational opportunities for children.  
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Partner experience in developing and implementing education programs that led to positive student 

outcomes: For more than one decade, Drew has been committed to developing and implementing 

programs aimed at raising achievement. As such, the school has made a strong commitment to monitoring 

statewide test results. Drew has consistently demonstrated strong performance relative to Georgia 

standards. The following illustrates 4
th
 grade gains over a 12-year period: 

Drew 4
th
 graders who met or 

exceeded standards over the 

past decade 

Reading Language Arts Mathematics 

2000-01 2011-12 2000-01 2011-12 2000-01 2011-12 

31% 99% 44% 100% 21% 95% 

In 2011, Drew received the Platinum Award from the Governor’s Office for Student 

Achievement for the Greatest Gain in Percentage of Students Meeting and Exceeding Standards. In the 

previous year, Drew was honored for its seventh year in a row of achieving Adequate Yearly Progress 

(AYP) and its fifth straight year as a Distinguished School. Drew’s 2012 CRCT scores below further 

reflect its commitment to excellence, significantly outperforming both State and Atlanta Public Schools’ 

(APS) averages in all tested grade levels.  In the 2010-2011 school year, Drew’s K - 5 program ranked 

number four out of 65 APS elementary schools. Drew’s grade 6 - 8 program ranked second out of 24 APS 

middle schools. (Please see Appendix 3 for 2012 student achievement results). These powerful data prove 

that all young people, regardless of income or background, are achieving at Drew. 

SECTION 2: Need for Project 

Description of target population and geographic location: Drew Charter School currently serves 1,100 

students from birth through grade 8. Drew is a neighborhood school; roughly 50% of students reside 

within surrounding neighborhoods and Drew has a geographic priorities outlined in its charter. 

Approximately 93% of the student population is African-American; 74% qualify for free or reduced 

lunch.  Drew anticipates that the demographic profile of its student population to remain the same and 

hopes to better fulfill its mission of serving the neighborhood by expanding opportunities for enrollment 

throughout the cradle-to-college pipeline. 

Drew is located in East Lake, five miles southeast of downtown Atlanta. This community has not 

always been safe and vibrant. 15 years ago the East Lake Meadows’ public housing project was located 

where the Villages of East Lake (a mixed-income community) is today. The housing project had a $35 

million annual drug trade, a crime rate 18 times higher than the national average, a 13.5% employment 

rate and only 5% of local elementary school 5
th
 graders able to pass the State mathematics exam.  

Since the late 1990’s, this neighborhood has undergone a successful revitalization. However, the 

dream of cradle-to-college is not yet realized. Research indicates that in 2011, only 78% of Drew 

“alumni” graduated from high school on time.  The team evaluated several options to seal the pipeline for 

Drew students and looked at four existing schools. Ultimately, the team determined that building a new 
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facility for grades 6-12 on Drew’s campus was the best and most economical way to seal the pipeline. 

Drew submitted a charter amendment petition in June 2012, and the Atlanta Board approved the 

amendment on July 9, 2012.  The approved 10-year expansion plan includes adding 400 students in 

grades Pre-K through 8 beginning in 2012, and 600 students in grades 9-12 beginning in 2013.  Drew is 

committed to fulfill its mission of helping families break the cycle of poverty. Drew is confident that its 

ambitious and innovative expansion plan will provide an excellent education from cradle-to-college in 

collaboration with key post-secondary and industry partners.  

Each year, Drew’s students—and their peers locally, throughout the State and nation—are faced 

with global standards for achievement that are, in fact, increasingly competitive. A number of 

groundbreaking methods of assessment are coming to the fore at present. Georgia is one of several states 

to take an aggressive approach to measuring effectiveness—including adoption of the Partnership for 

Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC), a new national assessment system of 

teaching and student learning that requires higher levels of thinking. Drew and the DCSPE partners are 

committed to continually designing and scaling programs that ensure student learning outcomes are 

aligned to rigorous standards and assessments. The proposed project will help to define and create the 

knowledge, skills and habits of mind today’s graduates need to be successful. 

SECTION 3: Quality of Project Design 

Proposal concept (what the partnership proposes to do): Since inception of the school in 2000, Drew 

has worked diligently to create an excellent cradle-to-college education pipeline to ensure children in our 

neighborhood are prepared to succeed in college and careers.  Research shows that while Drew Charter 

has been increasing student achievement across all grade levels and subject areas – with large gains in 

science and mathematics – our pipeline is incomplete and therefore ultimate student outcomes fall short 

of our goals.  Drew committed to ensuring that over 95% of our students graduate on time and are 

prepared for success in 21
st
 century colleges and careers, developing a highly-replicable model for 

Georgia and the nation. 

DCSPE will engage in one year of detailed high school planning and development in 2012-2013, 

followed by the opening of our high school in 2013-2014.  Drew Charter will lead the planning and 

development year, in partnership with Georgia Tech CEISMC, CFT, NTN, and Georgia State University 

School of Music, to accomplish several fundamental goals and activities. Identifying high school 

leadership along with hiring and training teachers are critical steps that will significantly impact and 

support the development of curricula, foundational documents for the school, and student and family 

recruitment.  Following the hire of key administrators and the 9
th
 grade teaching team, Drew Charter 

School, Georgia Tech CEISMC, GSU, NTN and CFT will engage in a series of local curriculum planning 

institutes as well as participate in national training offered by NTN.  The Drew high school curriculum 
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will focus on STEAM education using PBL applied learning strategies, aligned with Common Core 

Georgia Performance Standards, 21
st
 century Skills, and Career and College Readiness indicators.   

Simultaneously, Drew Charter School will expand work with Georgia Tech’s School of 

Architecture to develop an engagement plan and program to deliver to 8
th
 graders in 2012-2013 and the 

first 9
th
 grade class in 2013-2014.  Additionally, Drew Charter will expand its project-based, music 

technology program for 8
th
 and 9

th
 graders in 2012-2014 with Georgia State.  These activities leverage 

committed funding and programmatic goals from the 2011 Race to the Top grant awarded to Drew.    

During year two of the grant, the high school will open, serving 100 9
th
 graders in a temporary 

location – with the new school facility coming online in May 2014.  During the 2013-2014 school year, 

DCSPE will continue intense and regular teacher training and professional development with Georgia 

Tech CEISMC in STEM disciplines, Georgia State University School of Music for integrated arts and the 

CFT to provide local support of lessons learned and best practices from NTN.  Professional development 

will focus on continual improvement, efficient feedback loops and deepening content knowledge and 

teaching strategies to reinforce student achievement and learning.  Drew Charter School will implement a 

rigorous and authentic assessment plan for 9
th
 graders to ensure they are making progress on State and 

national assessments as well as building mastery in 21
st
 century skills.  A detailed outline of activities can 

be later found in the Scope of Work.   

Number of people partnership expects to serve: Drew currently serves approximately 1,100 students 

from birth through grade 8, with a student-teacher ratio of 20:1.  By year two of the grant, the partnership 

will serve 1,500 from birth through grade 9.  Drew Charter currently employs 84 certified, instructional 

staff members (including administrators, instructional specialists, regular and special education teachers, 

and paraprofessionals). By year two, Drew will employ 116 certified, instructional staff members. 

Number of LEAs, schools and K-12 students partnership expects to affect: At present, the school 

serves as lead grantee in a multiyear Race to the Top initiative in collaboration with three of the State’s 

premier educational institutions. Through workshops, seminars and other co-learning opportunities, Drew 

is now in the process of sharing knowledge and best practices with educators throughout Georgia who are 

developing their own roadmaps for 21
st
 century success—affecting many thousands of students each year. 

In line with the enclosed application, Drew is poised to join with the DCSPE partners to employ 

STEAM, applied learning and other educational innovations to not only advance student outcomes at 

Drew, but also to purport student-centered learning for public schools serving all grades both locally and 

across our State. APS enrolls approximately 55,000 students in 100 schools. Statewide there are 2,200-

plus schools that serve an estimated 1.6 million students. Further, if awarded the grant partners are willing 

to participate in comprehensive multisite evaluations by the Georgia Department of Education to 

document the success of our project for the purposes of replication. 
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An exceptional approach to meeting the needs of the future, serving a historically marginalized 

population and developing a national model for high school education: The DCSPE will develop a 

national model for STEAM education combined with PBL teaching strategies based on research, best 

practices and partnerships that will prepare students for 21
st
 century colleges and careers. The pre-existing 

Research Team, a collaborative group that includes leadership from Drew, the CFT, the CF Foundation, 

Inc. and Georgia Tech CEISMC, has conducted extensive research on the benefits of STEAM education 

as well as the improved academic outcomes of PBL teaching strategies.  The following paragraphs outline 

the findings that support our unique approach of combining STEAM education with applied learning 

through PBL teaching strategies to develop and implement a new national model for high school 

education. 

Strengthening the STEM pipeline for minorities: According to the 2007 National Academies Report, 

Rising Above the Gathering Storm: Energizing America for a Brighter Economic Future, globalization 

has challenged the preeminence and competitiveness of the United States in science and technology 

(National Academy of Sciences, 2007). As noted by the Commission on the Advancement of Women and 

Minorities in Science, Engineering and Technology Development in 2000, investing in a diverse scientific 

workforce will lead to innovation and creativity that will sharpen the competitive edge of the nation. In 

order to remain competitive, the nation will need to cultivate the STEM talents of underrepresented 

student groups in K-12 to utilize all of its intellectual capital for the future. In 2009 minorities made up 

54% of the total K-12 student enrollment in the state of Georgia (Georgia Department of Education, 

2009).  Projected US population trends illustrate an increase in the minority population from 30.6% in 

2000 to 46.3% in 2040. Implementing research-based educational practices that prepare underrepresented 

students to be competitive and successful in future STEM careers is a top priority.  

Integration of the arts:  Research indicates that arts-based teaching and learning promotes 21
st
 century 

skills in students. “If creativity, collaboration, communication and critical thinking—all touted as 

hallmark skills for 21st-century success—are to be cultivated, we need to ensure that STEM subjects are 

drawn closer to the arts" (Piro, 2010).  According to Rooney (2004) and Burton (1999), arts-based 

instruction teaches students to solve problems, develop ideas and organize a variety of learning 

experiences. Research in the neurosciences indicates the arts provide opportunities to develop integrated 

sensory, cognitive, emotional and motor capacities.  We are therefore committed to integrating the arts 

into our educational STEAM model for our academic program in the high school and throughout the 

cradle-to-college pipeline. 

Applied learning to deepen student mastery: PBL has been utilized for over 40 years in a variety of 

disciplines. Research demonstrates that deeper learning outcomes are achieved with PBL when compared 

to traditional methods.  A number of comprehensive research studies were conducted that provided a 
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synthesis of the effects of PBL in comparison to traditional forms of instruction.  A study by 

Johannes Strobel and Angela van Barneveld used a qualitative meta-analysis approach to compare and 

contrast assumptions and findings of the research on the effectiveness of PBL. Findings indicated that 

PBL was superior to traditional teaching approaches when it comes to long-term retention, skill 

development and satisfaction of students and teachers.  Drew Charter School and DCSPE partners are 

confident that enlisting PBL as a primary instructional practice will ensure that children will outperform 

peers on assessments, gain deeper content knowledge and skills and be prepared to excel in college and 

careers.   

A unique integration of STEAM education and Applied Learning for the 21
st
 Century: Drew Charter 

School realizes the symbiotic and powerful alliance between integrated STEAM curriculum and the 

hands-on, experiential and student-centered strategies utilized in applied learning through PBL.  Our 

proposal represents the first, cradle-to-college model for integrating STEAM and PBL for urban schools.  

We believe that combining STEAM and PBL together have the potential to revolutionize the way Georgia 

and America deliver K-12 education while demonstrating an effective model to prepare all children to 

compete and succeed in the global economy. 

Evidence-based findings that will have a statistically significant effect on improving student 

outcomes: Drew Charter and the DCSPE partners have conducted significant research on the substantial, 

positive impact that PBL and STEAM education have on student outcomes throughout the K-12 pipeline.  

This project will develop and implement an unparalleled curriculum through an ambitious but feasible 

expansion plan to both serve more of Georgia’s children and strengthen student outcomes to best prepare 

children for success in college and career.   

As previously noted, only 78% of Drew students graduated from area high schools on time.  

Drew Charter School, in partnership with many others, is invested in ensuring that at least 95% of 

students at Drew graduate on time. Based on research documenting Drew student outcomes and 

disappointing national trends, it would appear that the traditional high school model does not meet the 

needs of all Drew 8
th
 grade students and falls short of Drew’s goal. 

A growing body of theory has called for the shifting of instructional practices to emphasize 

deeper learning. DiSessa's (2000) assertion is that deeper learning occurs when students can "learn much 

more, learn it earlier and more easily, and fundamentally, learn it with a pleasure and commitment that 

only a privileged few now feel toward school learning." The PBL approach proposed for this project will 

offer countless opportunities for young people to engage in deeper learning—incorporating five key 

research-supported principles: active/authentic learning, social learning, contextual learning, ownership 

and engagement.  Additionally, a three-year study by Dr. Jo Boaler (Stanford University) concluded that 

the PBL schools studied not only achieve significant academic results for its students, despite the fact that 
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the school was located in the poorest area of the country, but PBL also reduced the inequities that 

typically correlate with gender and social class.  (Boaler et.al., 2002)  Please find a PBL research paper, 

drafted in collaboration with Drew, in Appendix 4. 

With the support of the Georgia Tech CEISMC, Georgia State University School of Music and 

other DCSPE partners, Drew Charter School leaders will develop and implement the first-of-its-kind 

instructional approach. At Drew, learning will be contextual, creative, and shared. Students will 

collaborate on projects that require critical thinking, communication and an interdisciplinary 

understanding of STEAM fields, preparing them for success in high-demand careers. DCSPE feels 

confident that our strong partnership will lead Drew’s students to great success in high school and 

beyond.  Moreover, these successes can be widely replicated. 

Advancing the State’s RT3 strategy: The unique and innovative academic program model that DCSPE 

is proposing will advance the State’s RT3 strategies of raising student achievement through the 

development and delivery of applied learning opportunities and experiences.  Drew Charter and partners 

through DCSPE are pioneers in the both State of Georgia and nation around developing a hybrid K-12 

PBL-STEAM pipeline. Together, we have sought out best-in-class local and national partners to support 

the development and implementation of the proposed applied learning opportunities for students at Drew.  

Further, we are committed to serving as a test site for research and design model, as Drew has been in the 

past. Moreover, we are dedicated to sharing best practices and lessons learned with local, State and 

national educators who are interesting in pursuing applied learning practices throughout the cradle-to-

college pipeline.  

Drew’s focus is directly tied to a subject matter in the STEAM fields, dedicated to improving the 

quality of preparation of students for success in college and  in-demand, high tech careers.  Through high-

level, rigorous classroom experiences, as well as opportunities for students to learn outside the school 

with industry partners and institutions of higher education, Drew graduates will be well prepared to excel 

in STEAM fields in college and careers. 

Drew and DCSPE partners have crafted a thoughtful and robust Scope of Work aimed at 

accomplishing our ambitious goals of being the first school, K-12, to implement an integrated PBL and 

STEAM teaching and learning model.  Please find a Scope of Work Narrative, detailing goals and 

activities, in Appendix 5. 
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RACE TO THE TOP INNOVATION FUND 

SCOPE OF WORK 

NAME OF PARTNERSHIP: Drew Charter School Partnership for Expansion (DCSPE) 

GOAL 1: Engage in a year of comprehensive planning with DCSPE partners to (a) launch a national search for a principal and recruit a talented teaching staff to successfully implement 

STEAM education and PBL teaching strategies; and (b) develop nationally competitive curriculum to support the expansion of Drew into grades 9-12 through a focus on STEAM 

coursework underpinned by PBL teaching strategies. 

ACTIVITY IMPLEMENTATION STEPS TIMELINE RESPONSIBILITY FUNDING SOURCE 

1 - Drew Charter 

School will launch 

a national principal 

and 

teacher/leadership 

search to recruit 

and hire 

exceptional 

individuals 

1) Construct a protocol for hiring the above new teachers and staff including job 

descriptions, interview protocols, non-teaching responsibilities for faculty, and a 

supervision and evaluation model for Drew Charter high school. 

2) Identify staffing requirements based on leadership, PBL and STEAM 

experience. 

3) Nationally recruit principals and key leadership (including teacher leaders) to 

begin the 2013-2014 school year who can contribute to the long-term success of 

Drew’s high school expansion and advance the goals of this project. 

4) CFT and NTN will continue to refine the protocol in partnership with Drew for 

subsequent hiring years  

 

1) 10/2012 

2) 10/2012 

3) 10/2012-3/2013  

4) 2012-2014 

ongoing 

- Drew 

- CFT 

- NTN 

RT3 Innovation Fund and in-

kind funds from Drew (CF 

Foundation) and CFT 

2 - Build talented 

leadership team to 

ensure student 

achievement in 

2013-2014 

1) Train new hires as follows: a) four-day residency training program (principal) 

with other NTN principals; b) two-day shadowing program at a NTN Demonstrate 

Site (principal and staff); c) five-day new school training program (all teachers and 

leaders). 

a) 2/2013 

b) 3/2012 

c) 6/2012 

- Drew 

- CFT  

- NTN 

RT3 Innovation Fund and in-

kind funds from Drew (CF 

Foundation) and CFT 

3 - Early hires and 

pre-work for key 

teachers and 

leaders.   

1) Drew Charter School will work to hire key teachers and leaders in the first 

quarter of 2013, with the Principal hired by January 2013. 

2)  If teachers are fully employed on a teaching contract, Drew will provide 

stipends for hired staff to work on a contract basis and develop curriculum etc. 

collaboration with other DCSPE partners. 

1) Q1 2013, 

principal hired by 

1/2013 

2) Q2 2013 

- Drew 

- Other DCSPE 

partners 

 RT3 Innovation Fund and 

in-kind funds from Drew (CF 

Foundation) and CFT 

4 - CFT will lead 

and facilitate 

leadership planning 

and professional 

culture building to 

support school 

culture with key 

Drew leaders and 

teachers. 

1) Organize and facilitate leadership planning (minimum of nine biweekly 

meetings) to review the amended charter and preliminary work on the high school, 

and develop a work agenda to be completed before the 2013 opening. 

2) Support the following training and professional development activities helping 

to ensure a successful school opening: a) “Leadership Design” (principal), b) 

“Leading the 21st Century High School” (principal), c) “Balancing Your 

Contrasting Roles as Dean Of Students” (Dean of Students or similar), d) “Charter 

Schools: Practices for High Performance” (principal and other key administration).  

3) DCPSE partners will work collaboratively with Drew Charter to support 

professional and leadership development on a regular basis within the framework 

of the school year. 

1) Before 3/2013 

2a) 2/2013 

2b) 7/2013 

2c) 6/2013 

2d) 11/2012 

3) School Year 

2012-2013; School 

Year 2013-2014 

 

 

- Drew (including 

the leadership and 

research teams) 

- CFT (2a, 2b) 

- Independent 

School 

Management (2c) 

- The Principals 

Center - Harvard 

Graduate School 

of Education (2d) 

DCSPE partners 

RT3 Innovation Fund and in-

kind funds from Drew (CF 

Foundation) and CFT 

5 - CFT will work 

with Drew Charter 

and other DCSPE 

1) CFT will work with Drew and other DCSPE partners to organize and facilitate a 

series of monthly retreats in preparation for the 2013-2014 school year to assist the 

new principal, Leadership Team (3 individuals), Research Team and current Drew 

 1) Monthly from 

1/2013 – 6/2013 

2) 1/2013 – 6/2013 

- Drew 

- CFT 

- Other DCSPE 

RT3 Innovation Fund and in-

kind funds from Drew (CF 

Foundation) and CFT 
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partners to organize 

and facilitate a 

series of monthly 

retreats 

administrators to: 

 Begin and complete the process for developing staff and student handbooks, 

school rules and policies, grading procedures, advisory curriculum, and other 

school programs that must be in place; and 

 Discuss and design a framework for mentoring programs, student internships, 

dual enrollment options, procedures for implementing standardized tests, 

student extra-curricular programs, athletics and other school programs that 

need to be investigated.   

2) CFT will organize, facilitate and synthesize the work that is produced from 

these regular retreats. 

partners 

6 - The CFT will 

coordinate and 

facilitate the 

development of the 

PBL curriculum in 

Drew's high school 

in collaboration 

with DSCPE 

partners 

1) CFT will host monthly retreats and curriculum-planning summer institutes when 

the first cohort of teachers is hired for the 9th grade. These institutes will be 

designed to: help teachers build their PBL curriculum, work on protocols for 

presentations of learning, develop project-tuning protocols, design the process for 

looking at and assessing student work, and develop a process for building an 

inclusive classroom community.   

2) Once teachers are hired (assumed by March 2013), the CFT will hold four 

monthly weekend retreats for all new 9th grade teachers focused on alignment of 

developed projects to Common Core and Georgia Performance standards.  

3) CFT will hold two, weeklong planning institutes in collaboration with NTN as 

part of CFT's Summer Institute program for the incoming team of high school 

faculty hired for the 2013-2014 academic year to develop curriculum.    

4) In the 2013-2014 school year, as we prepare to expand the teaching staff to 

include a new cohort of 10th grade teachers, the CFT in collaboration with and 

NTN will replicate the training retreats and summer institutes. A major difference 

is that we will utilize the experienced 9th grade teachers as "teacher leaders" in the 

training program for 10th grade teachers to develop curriculum. 

1) Monthly 

retreats: 3/2013 – 

6/2013; summer 

institutes: 6/2013, 

7/2013 

2) 3/2013 – 6/2013 

3) To be scheduled 

within the interval 

of 3/2013  and 

8/2013 

4) Monthly 

retreats: 3/2014 – 

6/2014; summer 

institutes: 6/2014, 

7/2014 

- Drew 

- CFT 

- Other DCSPE 

partners 

RT3 Innovation Fund and in-

kind funds from Drew (CF 

Foundation) and CFT 

7 - Develop 

internship program 

for students. 

1) Drew Charter, in collaboration with DCSPE partners and business and 

foundation partners, will develop a meaningful model program targeting students’ 

interests and passions for the student-world internship program. 

 The goal is to connect school-based learning with real world experiences and 

deepen understanding.   

1) By 9/2014  - Drew 

- Other DSCPE 

partners 

- Business and 

foundation 

partners 

RT3 Innovation Fund and in-

kind funds from Drew (CF 

Foundation) and CFT 

GOAL 2: Implement Drew’s high school expansion plan, completing the cradle-to-college education pipeline, and develop a national model, by creating a unique high school that will 

provide real-world learning opportunities. 

ACTIVITY IMPLEMENTATION STEPS TIMELINE RESPONSIBILITY FUNDING SOURCE 

1 - Design a 21st 

century media 

center, integrated 

technology 

infrastructure and 

one-to-one 

computing 

environment to 

1) Drew will retain an education technology consultant, working with DCSPE 

partners, to complete a comprehensive analysis of technology available and craft a 

personalized media and technology plan for the high school to support student 

learning and provide the greatest access to information. Key elements will include: 

 A one-to-one device plan that will meet needs of students, teachers and 

families in and out of school; 

 A plan for one-to-one at the high school level that will support the work of the 

1) 9/2012-6/2013 

2) 6/2013-6/2014 

- Drew 

- Education 

Technology 

Consultant 

- Other DCSPE 

partners 

 RT3 Innovation Fund and 

in-kind funds from Drew  
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support student 

learning.   

one-to-one technology program in the Junior Academy, funded through 

Drew’s 2011 Race to the Top Innovation grant. 

2)9th grade will receive extensive and ongoing professional development to ensure 

that the role of technology at Drew evolves beyond that of infrastructure to a 

wellspring for delivering rigorous and highly responsive learning experiences.   

2 - Involve current 

8th grade students 

in high school 

facility development 

and construction. 

1) Drew will develop a program, in partnership with Georgia Tech CEISMC to 

invest students in the new and innovative high school program.   

2) Drew 8th graders will work on projects and lessons in line with the above 

program with architects, engineers, energy-, water-, and resource-efficiency 

experts and the research team to help develop their high school building and 

academic model to continue into the 9th grade.  

1) Q4 2012 

2) School Years 

2012-2013 (8th 

grade) and 2013-

2014 (9th grade) 

 - Drew 

- Georgia Tech 

CEISMC in 

partnership with 

the Georgia Tech 

School of 

Architecture 

RT3 Innovation Fund and in-

kind funds from Drew  

3 - Support teachers 

and leaders during 

year one to 

continue to develop 

STEAM education 

and PBL strategies 

to ensure student 

achievement.   

1)  NTN will provide the following during the duration of implementation (Years 

1-4) for teachers and leaders:  

 At least seven days of onsite coaching and 10 days of remote support per year;  

 Webinars and online courses designed to meet specific needs in the areas of 

project development, school culture, classroom management, assessment and 

reviewing data; 

 Biannual regional content training focused on deepening content mastery for 

teachers; 

 Biannual Leadership Summit for the principal and key administration; 

 Tools and resources for school-wide data reports and benchmarking to track 

student progress; and 

 Access to Echo, a web-based learning management system to monitor and 

increase student achievement.    

1) Duration of 

grant and beyond 

(School Years 1 – 

4) 

- Drew 

- NTN 

 RT3 Innovation Fund and 

in-kind funds from Drew (CF 

Foundation) and CFT 

4 - Professional 

development for 9th 

and 10th grade 

teachers preparing 

for year two to 

support continued 

student progress in 

PBL and STEAM.   

1) Offer professional development for 9th and 10th grade teachers preparing for 

Year Two in how to work within a professional learning community (PLC) to 

support continued student progress in PBL and STEAM.   

2) Each cohort of 9th and 10th grade teachers will be sent to the PLC at Work 

institute by Solution Tree.   

1) Summer of 

2013 and 2014 

2) Timeline will 

depend upon team 

hiring and 

schedules 

- Drew 

- CFT (1) 

- Solution Tree (2) 

RT3 Innovation Fund and in-

kind funds from Drew (CF 

Foundation) and CFT 

GOAL 3: Ensure that Drew students are prepared to excel in 21st century colleges and careers as evidenced high achievement on state and nationally-normed assessments and 

demonstrated mastery in critical thinking and problem solving, collaboration, communication and creativity and innovation. 

ACTIVITY IMPLEMENTATION STEPS TIMELINE RESPONSIBILITY FUNDING SOURCE 

1 - Georgia State 

will introduce 8th 

graders to project-

based music 

technology.   

1) Conduct a research study of the 5th grade music technology program currently 

under the first Race to the Top grant.  

2) Provide a creative project-based music technology program for Drew’s 8th 

grade students.  

1) 1/2013 – 5/2013 

2) School Year 

2012 – 2013: 

quarters 3 and 4 

- Georgia State 

University - 

School of Music 

- Drew 

RT3 Innovation Fund and in-

kind funds from Drew  

2 - Support 

advanced student 

1) Support advanced student learning through a Drew Summer Transition Program 

based at the Georgia Tech campus. The program will be offered to all rising 9th 

1)Summer 2013 

and  Summer 2014  

 - Drew 

- Georgia Tech 

 RT3 Innovation Fund and 

in-kind funds from Drew  
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learning through 

Drew Summer 

Transition Program 

at Georgia Tech.   

graders in cohorts of 25 who will spend one week (9-3 pm Monday - Friday) over 

a four-week period. It will combine STEM focused summer enrichment with 

activities designed to help students be successful in high school. Sessions will 

address: 

 Study skills, time management, career awareness and PSAT preparation; 

 How digital technologies are used to critically analyze and solve problems; 

 How data are collected and processed using digital technologies as well as 

how to draw conclusions about real-world STEM related issues. 

CEISMC 

3 - High School 

orientation and 

experiential 

learning retreat 

1) DCSPE partners will engage in collaborative planning with hired high school 

faculty to develop a multiday high school orientation and experiential learning 

retreat for Drew’s rising 9th graders. Design elements will include: high school 

culture, building relationships with peers and faculty, understanding the high 

school schedule, expectations of PBL at Drew and developing class camaraderie. 

2) All of Drew’s rising 9th graders will be required to participate in the above high 

school orientation program: 

 The first part of the orientation will be spent onsite with teachers, parents and 

students. 

 The second segment will be spent outside of the classroom and off campus for 

experiential learning opportunities and trust building activities.   

1) January-June 

2013 

2) Summer 2013 

and Summer 2014 

 - Drew 

- Other DCSPE 

partners 

 RT3 Innovation Fund and 

in-kind funds from Drew (CF 

Foundation) and CFT 

4 - Integrate music 

technology into 9th 

grade with Georgia 

State 

1) Provide a creative project-based music technology program for 9th grade Drew 

students. (If the high school opens later than School Year 2013-2014, the 

curriculum will be provided for grades 7 and 8.)  

2) Conduct a research study to uncover students’ development of computational 

thinking and musical understanding as they participate in the above program. 

Findings will inform the program evaluation.  

1) School Year 

2013-2014 

2) School Year 

2013-14  

- Drew 

- Georgia State 

University School 

of Music 

RT3 Innovation Fund and in-

kind funds from Drew 

5 - Measuring 

outcomes to prepare 

students to excel in 

21st century colleges 

and careers. 

1) Drew and DCSPE partners will finalize the assessment plan, building on the 

charter amendment and stated assessment goals, to ensure assessment of 21st 

century skills are measured as well as content knowledge aligned with the 

Common Core Georgia Performance Standards.   

2) Drew and DCSPE partners will use the College and Work Readiness 

Assessment and resources provided by NTN to regularly track and measure 

progress and growth on student mastery of 21st century skills including 

communication, collaboration, creativity, innovation, critical thinking and problem 

solving.  

3) Students will begin to develop learning portfolios to provide evidence of 

learning outcomes. 

1) January-June 

2013 

2) School Year 

2013-14 

(depending on test 

date) 

3) School Year 

2013-2014 

- Drew 

- Other DCSPE 

partners 

RT3 Innovation Fund and in-

kind funds from Drew (CF 

Foundation) and CFT 
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SECTION 4: Quality of Project Evaluation:  

Extent to which methods of evaluation will provide high-quality implementation data and 

performance feedback: The evaluation will aim to determine whether and to what extent program goals 

and objectives have been met. Following Mertens’ (2009) framework for transformative research and 

evaluation, the program evaluators will take an approach that “prioritizes community involvement, mixed 

methods, and a cyclical approach to evaluation such that findings of one inquiry feed into subsequent 

decisions for studies and/or community action.” Employing this transformative approach, the evaluation 

is designed to provide both formative and summative data regarding the progress and impact of the 

program at logical time points. Evaluators will regularly provide formative guidance to assess and inform 

adaptations to ongoing project activities and to refine evaluation instruments over the course of 

implementation. Annual reports will synthesize evaluation data to provide summative evidence of 

program effectiveness.  

Extent to which evaluation will provide sufficient information about key elements and approach of 

project to facilitate replication or testing in other settings: The evaluation will utilize a variety of 

quantitative and qualitative measures to document progress toward the intended outcomes of the 

Innovation grant. During the first program year, evaluators will conduct periodic site visits and maintain 

close communication with partners in order to monitor progress toward the goal of opening Drew Senior 

Academy for the 2013-14 academic year. During the second year, the evaluation will focus on monitoring 

initial program implementation and assessment of student outcomes related to program goals. Data 

sources will include measures of student achievement in STEAM disciplines and project-based learning 

and documentation of student engagement in STEAM activities. Additionally, whenever possible, 

evaluators will attend program events to observe planning and implementation as it unfolds.  

Extent to which proposed project plan includes sufficient resources to carry out project evaluation 

effectively: DCSPE will devote the necessary time and resources to ensure that the project evaluation can 

be carried out effectively. The grant will fund one-half of the salary for a member of the CEISMC 

Evaluation Team including funds for travel, materials, and supplies associated with the evaluation.  

Extent to which proposed evaluation is rigorous: Activities undertaken as part of this grant will be 

evaluated by researchers from the CEISMC Evaluation Group. Dr. Jessica Gale will oversee the 

collection, analysis and reporting of evaluation data. Dr. Gale holds a Ph.D. in Educational Studies from 

Emory University and has extensive experience in STEM policy implementation and mixed methods 

research. The rigor of evaluation is further detailed in the Project Evaluation Table on pages 16-19.  
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GEORGIA BENEFITS FROM A MEASURABLY STRONGER COMMITMENT FROM PUBLIC AND PRIVATE SECTORS TO SUPPORT AND ADVANCE POSITIVE ACADEMIC OUTCOMES FOR STUDENTS 

INDICATOR(S) DATA COLLECTION METHODS(S) FREQUENCY OF DATA COLLECTION/REVIEW 

In addition to Innovation Grant Funds, Drew and its 

partners, including ELF and CF, have committed to 

contributing $20M in year one and $58M in year two to 

support implementation of the proposed initiative.  

School Administrator Survey - school administrators will report 

progress on fundraising goals  

The administrator survey will be completed each 

semester. Data will be included in each annual 

evaluation reports.  

GEORGIA BENEFITS FROM AN INCREASED NUMBER AND PERCENTAGE OF STUDENTS AND TEACHERS WHO WILL HAVE ACCESS TO INNOVATIVE PROGRAMS, STRATEGIES, AND PRACTICES 

RELATED TO APPLIED LEARNING AND TEACHER/LEADER RECRUITMENT AND DEVELOPMENT 

INDICATOR(S) DATA COLLECTION METHODS(S) FREQUENCY OF DATA COLLECTION/REVIEW 

Senior Academy Enrollment  

100 9th grade students will be enrolled in the Drew Senior 

Academy for the 2013-14 academic year. 

School Administrator Report  Administrators will report student enrollment at the 

beginning of the 2013-14 academic year. Data will 

be analyzed for inclusion in the Year 2 Annual 

Report. 

1:1 Computing 

100% of 9th grade students will participate in 1:1 computing 

program during the 2013-14 academic year. 

Student Activity Reports – Teachers and/or administrators report 

student participation in the 1:1 computing program during the 

2013-14 academic year.  

Student Activity Reports will be submitted each 

semester during the 2013-14 academic year. Data 

will be analyzed for inclusion in the Year 2 Annual 

Report. 

Summer Transition and 9th Grade Orientation 

100 % of students entering 9th grade will participate in the 

Summer Transition Program at GA Tech and Drew’s High 

School Orientation and Experiential Learning Program 

during the Summers of 2013 and 2014.  

Document analysis/observation: administrators will provide 

documentation of the Summer Transition Program and High School 

Orientation and Experiential Learning program. Whenever possible, 

a member of the evaluation team will observe planning sessions. 

Document analysis and observation data will be 

included in the each Annual Evaluation Report. 

Project-Based Learning Training 

During the 2013-14 school year, 100% of Drew Senior 

Academy teachers will participate in Project-Based 

Learning training provided by the New Tech Network.  

Teacher Survey – Teachers will report on their participation in 

Project-Based Learning training institutes.  

Document Review/Observation - administrators and New Tech 

Network will provide documentation of project based learning 

trainings. Whenever possible, a member of the evaluation team will 

observe training sessions. 

The teacher survey will be administered at the 

beginning and end of the 2013-14 academic year. 

Survey data will be supplemented with document 

analysis and observation data and will be included in 

the Year 2 annual evaluation report.  
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Professional Learning Community Training 

During the summers of 2013 and 2014, 100% of Drew 

Senior Academy’s 9th and 10th grade teachers will 

participate in Solution Tree’s PLC at Work Institutes.  

Teacher Survey – Teachers will report on their participation in PLC 

at Work Institutes.  

Document Review - School administrators will provide additional 

documentation of teacher participation in PLC at Work Institutes.  

The teacher survey will be administered at the 

beginning and end of the 2013-14 academic year. 

Survey data will be supplemented with document 

analysis for inclusion in each annual evaluation 

report.  

GA State Project-based Music Technology Program 

100% of 8th grade students will participate in Georgia 

State’s project-based music technology program during the 

2012-13 academic year. 

Teacher Survey – Teachers will complete an annual survey in order 

to provide both qualitative (i.e. descriptions) and quantitative (i.e. 

survey ratings) data regarding their students’ participation in the 

project-based music technology program.  

Document Review/Observation - administrators will provide 

documentation of the music technology program. Whenever 

possible, a member of the evaluation team will observe program 

activities. 

A survey of 8th grade teachers will be administered 

at the beginning and end of the 2012-13 academic 

year.  Survey data will be supplemented with 

document analysis and observation data and will be 

included in the Year 1 annual evaluation report.  

Internship Program 

The Drew Charter School Internship Program will be 

developed by the end of the 2013-14 academic year such 

that the program will be prepared to offer to Juniors during 

the 2014-15 school year.  

Administrator Survey – Administrators will report on Internship 

Program development 

Document Review/Observation - School administrators will submit 

documentation of internship program development (i.e. meeting 

agendas, summaries, program materials). Whenever possible, a 

member of the evaluation team will observe planning sessions. 

The administrator survey will be completed each 

semester. Survey data will be supplemented with 

document analysis and observation data and will be 

included in the Year 2 annual evaluation report. 
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GEORGIA BENEFITS FROM A STRONGER UNDERSTANDING OF THE TYPES OF INNOVATIVE PROGRAMS, STRATEGIES, AND PRACTICES THAT WILL LEAD TO POSITIVE IMPROVEMENTS IN 

APPLIED LEARNING, TEACHER INDUCTION, AND HOMEGROWN TEACHER PIPELINE EFFORTS 

INDICATOR(S) DATA COLLECTION METHODS(S) FREQUENCY OF DATA COLLECTION/REVIEW 

New Tech Network (NTN) Planning Milestones 

In Year 1, 100% of the following steps required to open 

Drew Senior Academy will be completed:  

 NTN application submitted and approved 

 NTN conducts Readiness Visit 

 Selection of New Tech Director (Principal) 

 Agreement with NTN finalized  

 Director completes Planning Academy course  

 Director attends Leadership Residency  

 Director and Year 1 staff attend NTN Teacher Residency 

at Demonstration Site  

 New Schools Training for Director staff 

 Drew Senior Academy Opens by Fall, 2013 

Site Visits 

School Administrator Survey 

At least four site visits will be conducted during 

each program year. Site visits may include 

attendance at planning meetings, informal interviews 

with teachers and administrators, and document 

review.  

School administrators will complete a survey each 

semester in order to confirm progress toward 

implementation milestones. Data will be included in 

each annual evaluation report. 

Leadership Retreats and Planning Meetings 

The newly hired principal, leadership team, and Drew 

administration will attend monthly leadership retreats and 

coordinate a minimum of 9 planning meetings.  

Document Review/Observation - administrators will provide retreat 

and planning meeting documentation. Whenever possible, a 

member of the evaluation team will observe planning sessions. 

Document analysis and observation data will be 

included in the Year 1 Report.  

Curriculum Planning Institutes 

Incoming faculty hired for the 2013-2014 academic year 

will participate in two weeklong curriculum planning 

institutes in collaboration with DCSPE partners between 

March 2013 and August 2013.  

Teacher Survey – Teachers will report on their participation in 

curriculum planning institutes.  

Document Review/Observation - School administrators will 

provide documentation of each planning institute. Whenever 

possible, a member of the evaluation team will attend and observe 

planning sessions. 

The teacher survey will be administered at the 

beginning and end of the 2013-14 academic year. 

Survey data will be supplemented with document 

analysis and observation data and will be included in 

the Year 1 annual evaluation report.  

School Design Planning by Students 

With the goal of involving current Drew students in the 

design of the new high school, 100% of 8th and 9th grade 

students will be involved in design planning during the 

2012-13 and 2013-14 years respectively.  

Teacher Survey – Teachers will complete an annual survey to 

report student participation in the project-based music technology 

program.  

Document Review/Observation - School administrators will 

provide documentation of the music technology program (i.e. 

program materials). Whenever possible, a member of the evaluation 

team will observe program activities. 

The teacher survey will be administered at the 

beginning and end of the 2012-13 academic year.  

Survey data will be supplemented with document 

analysis and observation data and will be included in 

the Year 1 annual evaluation report.  
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GEORGIA BENEFITS FROM IMPROVED STUDENT OUTCOMES 

INDICATOR(S) DATA COLLECTION METHODS(S) FREQUENCY OF DATA COLLECTION/REVIEW 

21st Century Skills 

By 2014, 100% of 9th grade students will attain at least the 

Basic Level of proficiency and the percent of the 9th graders 

attaining Proficient or Advanced levels of proficiency on the 

21st Century Skills assessment will increase from 28% to 

50%.  

21st Century Skills Assessment The 21st Century Skills assessment will be 

administered to all 9th grade students during the 

2013-14 academic year. Data will be analyzed for 

inclusion in the Year 2 Annual Report. 

College and Work Readiness Assessment (CWRA) 

In accordance with the Drew Senior Academy Charter, data 

from the 2013-14 administration of the CWRA will be 

considered baseline data. Drew will establish a baseline to 

determine an appropriate measure of improvement and 

growth in the areas of critical thinking, analytic reasoning, 

problem solving, and written communication, as assessed by 

the CWRA.  

College and Work Readiness Assessment The College and Work Readiness Assessment will 

be administered to all 9th grade students during the 

2013-14 academic year. Data will be analyzed for 

inclusion in the Year 2 Annual Report. 

End-of-Course Tests 

In accordance with the Drew Senior Academy Charter 

petition, E.O.C.T. data from the 2013-14 school year will be 

considered baseline data. Drew will establish a baseline to 

determine an appropriate measure of improvement on each 

End-of-Course test.  

End-of-Course Tests End-of-Course tests will be administered to all 9th 

grade students during the 2013-14 academic year. 

Data will be analyzed for inclusion in the Year 2 

Annual Report. 

Project-Based Learning Portfolios 

By 2014, 100% of 9th grade students will complete project-

based learning portfolios. 85% of portfolios will 

demonstrate proficiency in project-based learning.  

Teacher Survey – Teachers will report on their students’ completion 

of project-based learning portfolios and the percentage of their 

students whose portfolios demonstrated proficiency in project based 

learning.  

Review of a sample of student portfolios  

The teacher survey will be administered at the 

beginning and end of the 2013-14 academic year. A 

sample of student portfolios will be provided for 

review by May, 2014. Data will be analyzed for 

inclusion in Year 2 Annual Report. 
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SECTION 5: Quality of Project Management Plan 

The partnership’s capacity to achieve the objectives of the proposed project on time and within 

budget: Drew Charter School and the DCSPE partners have extensive experience with creating and 

disseminating models that have yielded highly responsive, cost-effective solutions for countless educators 

and learners. Together, we believe that sharing project planning, management of activities and 

accountability for results is necessary to maximize resources and reduce duplication of efforts—thereby 

ensuring implementation on time and within budget. To this end, components of our approach include: 

 Collaborative project design: pre grant submission meetings have been regularly held by key 

stakeholders to identify goals and objectives (based on up-to-date research and practical 

experience), specify key milestones and delineate a partnered process for achievement  

 Strengthened teacher leadership and the establishment of model teams: creating a sustainable 

structure and process to align instruction with project goals and objectives on multiple levels 

 Technology integration: appropriate use of educational software, learning management systems, the 

Internet and other electronic communication platforms (including mobile tools) 

 Data collection and analysis: specifying key metrics, monitoring and tracking outcomes, drawing 

correlations between programming and performance, and making refinements to methods as needed 

 Shared institutional resources: mobilizing partners’ intellectual capital and other assets to further 

support successful project implementation and spread innovations within our respective networks 

Qualifications, relevant training and experience of key personnel: Drew’s Director of Teaching and 

Learning, Boon C. Boonyapat, will serve as project director. He earned his bachelor and master degrees in 

physics and mathematics and worked in the field of nuclear research for several years. Mr. Boonyapat 

started his career in education at Grady High School as a physics and mathematics teacher. He was the 

science department chairman for five years and later became mathematics department chairman for five 

more years. Mr. Boonyapat served in the APS Office of High Schools as a Director of Post-Secondary 

Readiness and later as a Project Administrator for the High School Transformation Initiative sponsored by 

a  Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation grant. He then joined the Mathematics and Science Department as a 

Program Administrator working under a General Electric Foundation grant.  

The grant will be administrated by Laura Bollman, the Director of Planning and Implementation 

for the high school expansion project at the CF Foundation. Ms. Bollman has worked with Drew Charter 

School and the East Lake neighborhood since 2006 where she started as a 6
th
 grade Social Studies 

Teacher and part of the 2006 Teach For America teaching corps.  After teaching, she worked as part of 

the founding team at Purpose Built Communities from 2009-2011. Purpose Built Communities is a non-

profit dedicated to consulting with local leaders from across the country to implement a successful 
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framework of neighborhood revitalization based on the East Lake model. Ms. Bollman earned her 

bachelor’s degree from Wellesley College. 

The support of Drew’s school administration will also be vital to the success of this grant. With 

over 80 years of combined experience in education, the three principals at Drew bring essential 

knowledge to the table in terms of teacher training and implementation at the school/classroom level. 

(Please see Appendix 6 for brief biographies of each.) In addition, our grant will be supported by Drew’s 

Board of Directors, several foundations, the Literacy and Mathematics Coordinators, the School 

Operations Manager and the Teaching and Learning Committee. 

SECTION 6: Quality of Sustainability /Scalability Plan 

The extent to which the eligible applicant demonstrates a plan for how it will operate the project 

beyond the length of the grant.  Based on 12 years of financial sustainability and responsibility, Drew 

Charter School can clearly demonstrate that it has the resources to operate beyond the grant period.  Since 

its creation by the CF Foundation in 1995, the East Lake Foundation has led the comprehensive 

revitalization of the East Lake neighborhood. Among its extensive investments, The Foundation raised 

$31.5 million to build the Education Village including the East Lake Family YMCA, East Lake 

Sheltering Arms Early Education and Family Center, and Charles R. Drew Charter School. Both the CF 

and the East Lake Foundations remain committed to the success and achievement of Drew’s students and 

continue to make significant grants to organizations and partners to support Drew. Drew currently 

receives approximately $1.6 million through grants from the East Lake and CF Foundations for 

extracurricular programming including after-school and summer programs as well as a teen support 

initiative. While the school operates on the public dollars allocated to deliver the core curriculum, the 

school has the support and commitment of the CF Foundation and East Lake Foundation into perpetuity. 

Drew Charter School has effectively managed an annual budget of over $9 million per year. Despite 

recent cuts to Quality Based Education (QBE) funding and austerity reductions, Drew has built and maintained 

a significant operating reserve. Funds from the operating reserve will not only be used to sustain Drew’s 

operations through an emergency situation but can be used to fund future projects that evolve from Innovation 

Fund efforts or activities that require additional funding after the two-year grant term concludes. Drew’s 

proactive approaches to budgeting and finance demonstrate best practices in financial health for charter 

schools. Members of Drew’s Board of Directors and Finance Committee have strong backgrounds in finance – 

they bring the skills and experience to budget effectively with strong oversight. The school’s fiduciary 

responsibilities are clearly delineated. Internal controls and procedures are in place. The East Lake Foundation 

provides Drew with a top notch, state of the art facility on a long-term, low-cost basis which allows the school 

to operate debt-free. 
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Drew Charter, the CF Foundation and East Lake Foundation drafted a 10-year budget and 

fundraising campaign, including the complete expansion of grades K-8 and the scale up through grade 12. 

At full capacity Drew’s cradle-to-college pipeline relies on public funding for operations and represents a 

sustainable financial model.  Please find an operating budget summary and detail in Appendix 7.   Drew’s 

$73 million fundraising campaign covers the cost of the new Junior and Senior Academies serving 1,000 

students in grades 6-12, with a state-of-the-art learning commons (media center), a competitive athletic 

complex with a full size track and field, two gymnasiums and a 500-seat performing arts center.  Of the 

$73 million, $28 million is already identified. Drew anticipates $15 million from federal New Market Tax 

Credits. 

Evidence of broad support from community stakeholders:  The East Lake and broader Atlanta 

community have embraced Drew and support its exciting plans for expansion over the next 10 years.  

Drew Charter has collected over 1,000 signatures of support along with numerous letters of support for its 

expansion plan and charter amendment petition.  Please find copies of the signed community petition in 

Appendix 8 as well as letters of support in Section VI. 

The demonstrated commitment from DCSPE, other Drew partners and funders will help Drew to 

sustain success over the long term. Two of Drew’s key Innovation Fund partners, Georgia State 

University School of Music and CFT, have a six-year history of funding grants through the CF 

Foundation.  

In summary, Drew has a 12 year record of successful operation, continually improving its test 

scores, building a waiting list and accumulating the success stories of children and families.  Drew and its 

partners recognize that we are at a critical moment of opportunity to influence high school education 

across the country to ensure that American children can be globally competitive.  The school and its 

partners are committed to use of the Race to the Top Innovation Fund to put forth a truly innovative and 

successful hybrid STEAM and PBL model preparing more children from cradle-to-college for next 

generation success.   

Our ultimate goal is to sustain grant activity by evolving it into a formalized, replicable model for 

educational improvement—continuously evaluating both student and teacher progress while participating 

in offerings and refining our approach as needed. We will disseminate these findings throughout the city, 

State and nation by serving as a demonstration model to other charter and public schools in Atlanta and 

throughout the Purpose Built Communities network.  We are confident that our efforts will have 

maximum impact, transparency and scalability. 
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GOVERNOR'S OFFICE OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT 
RACE TO THE TOP INNOVATION FUND BUDGET FORM 

Project Name: Drew Partnership for Expansion Applicants requesting Venture grants should complete the column under 

"Project Year 1."  Applicants requesting funding for Enterprise grants should 

complete all applicable columns.  Please read all instructions before 

completing form. 

SECTION A - BUDGET SUMMARY (grant funds) 

INNOVATION FUND COSTS 

Budget Categories Project Year 1 Project Year 2 Total 

(a) (b) (d) 

1. Personnel 

 

$ 33,995.00 

 

$27,925.00 $69,920.00 

2. Fringe Benefits $1,698.00 $6,254.02 $7,952.02  

3. Travel 

 

$ 30,700.00 

 

$27,000.00 $57,700.00 

4. Equipment 

 

$8,000.00 

 

$68,000.00 $76,000.000 

5. Supplies 

 

$ 10,650.00 

 

$9,625.00 $20,275.00 

6. Contractual 

 

$ 209,959.73 

 

$184,708.62 $394,668.35 

7. Construction   $0.00 

8. Other 

 

$22,700.00 

 

$ 22,200.00 $44,900.00 

9. Total Direct Costs (lines 

1-8) 

 

$317,702.73 $345,712.64 $663,463.35 

10. Indirect Costs* 

 

$31,770.27 $34,571.26 $66,346.34 

11. Training Stipends 

 

$10,000.00 $10,000.00 $20,000.00 

12. Total Costs (lines 9-11) 

 

$359,473.00 $390,283.90 $749,756.90 

SECTION B - BUDGET SUMMARY (matching) 

NON-INNOVATION FUND COSTS 

Budget Categories Project Year 1 Project Year 2 Total 

(a) (b) (d) 

1. Personnel 

 

$175,670.00 $124,500.00 $300,170.00  

2. Fringe Benefits 

 

$36,431.20 $25,931.20 $62,362.40  

3. Travel 

 

$16,400.00 

 

$1,900.00 $18,300.00 

4. Equipment   $0.00 

5. Supplies $900.00  $900.00 

6. Contractual $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

7. Construction $ 2,103,539.00 

 

$57,896,461.00 $60,000,000.00 

8. Other $    18,050,000.00 $503,000.00 $18,553,000.00 

9. Total Direct Costs (lines 

1-8) 

 

$ 20,382,940.20 

 

$ 58,551,792.20 $78,934,732.40 

10. Indirect Costs* $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

11. Training Stipends $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 

12. Total Costs (lines 9-11) 

 

$ 20,382,940.20 

 

$ 58,551,792.20 $78,934,732.40 
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SECTION C: Budget Narrative and Justification 

In partnership with Drew Charter School, as the lead partner, Georgia Tech Center for Education 

Integrating Science, Mathematics and Computing (CEISMC); the Georgia State University School of 

Music; the Westminster Schools’ Center for Teaching (CFT) and the New Technology Network (NTN) 

will collectively, Drew Charter School Partners for Expansion (DCSPE), and apply for a $750,000 

Enterprise Grant under Priority 4 of the Race to the Top Innovation Fund. 

Georgia Tech CEISMC, Georgia State University and CFT are already engaged with Drew Charter 

School students, faculty and administration to further Drew’s strategic vision through a successful 

partnership, funded by Georgia’s Race to the Top Innovation Fund in 2011.  This partnership was aimed 

to improve faculty professional development and student achievement in the areas of Science, 

Technology, Engineering, Arts and Mathematics (STEAM).  Drew and existing partners sought NTN to 

create another powerful alliance and partnership, DCSPE, to create the nation’s first hybrid cradle-to-

college pipeline, integrating STEAM and Project Based Learning (PBL). 

In year one of the grant (2012-2013 school year), the DCSPE partnership plans on spending $359,473.00 

to design, implement and evaluate the programs outlined under the three goals that we explained in the 

grant narrative and Scope of Work.  Some activities are carried out with a one-year timeframe, while 

other activities extend over the grant’s two-year term.  In year two of the grant (2013-2014 school year), 

the partnership will spend $390,283.90.  Year two represents the second year of the expansion plan and 

the first year of the new high school.  In total, the partnership will invest $749,756.90 into a visionary and 

replicable model of K-12 education for Georgia and the nation. 

Requested funds will be allocated to the following categories: (1) conferences, workshops, seminars or 

institutes for training Drew Charter faculty in the areas outlined in the Scope of Work; (2) registration and 

travel costs associated with activities in (1); (3) stipends for Drew Charter faculty to attend workshops or 

seminars that are run outside the normal school hours and/or paying for substitutes when faculty are 

participating in professional development related to grant activity; (4) curriculum development 

consultants and resources for the new high school, including the work of faculty outside of regular school 

hours and non-Drew contracted consultants; (6) materials (e.g. books, food etc.) to support meeting 

throughout the grant cycle; (7) support for some Georgia Tech and Georgia State professors and/or 

graduate students to work collaboratively with Drew Charter faculty and students; (8) support for Drew 

Charter to be the lead partner of the grant and; (9) resources to evaluate whether the grant goals and 

activities are successfully implemented.  
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While Drew Charter School is involved in every activity, the other partners are involved in some of the 

activities in the grant.  In a few of the activities, one of the partners will collaborate solely with Drew 

Charter, however, all DCSPE partners will be connected through regular meetings and their coordination 

with the Project Director and Project Evaluator. 

The DCSPE partners, CF Foundation and East Lake Foundation have allocated matching resources 

totaling $78.9 million into the expansion plan to support RT3 grant, capital costs, land acquisition, and 

the 10-year start-up operating gap.  These donated resources will allow Drew to leverage this grant for the 

critical start-up years and support ongoing student achievement linked to the goals in the grant and scope 

of work.  The RT3 funding of $749,756.90 will leverage one of the largest, philanthropic investments in 

Georgia’s public schools contributing approximately $105.00 for every $1.00 requested through the 

Innovation Fund.    

A detailed budget narrative and justification for year one and year two are in the pages to follow.    
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Drew Charter School Partners for Expansion 

Innovation Fund – Race to the Top 

Year 1 (2012-2013) 

 

The costs below align with the line item budget included on pages 14-17 of this document. 

 

*************************************************************************************

PERSONNEL:  TOTAL COST FOR YEAR ONE = $33,995.00 

Drew Charter School  

requested through RT3 – $20,000.00 

in-kind funds - $175,670.00 

 

$20,000.00 This amount will cover the cost of a technology consultant to complete a comprehensive 

analysis of technology available and craft a unique media and technology plan for the high school to 

support student learning.   

 

In-kind funding from Drew Charter School of $27,000.00 will cover 25% of the salary of the Project 

Director (Drew’s Director of Teaching and Learning) to manage the grant.  Funding from the CF 

Foundation of $79,000.00 will cover the salary of the Director of Program Design and Implementation 

who will also support the Project Director on the grant; $25,000.00 will cover the salary of an 

administrative assistant to help support the grant activities and accountability; and $25,000.00 will cover 

the Principal stipends for pre-work and retreats from January 2102 – July 2012. 

 

Center for Teaching (CFT) at the Westminster Schools 

requested through RT3 - $4,995.00 

in-kind funds - $19,670.00 
 

$4,995.00 This amount was will cover the cost of the Executive Director and Administrator at the Center 

For Teaching during year one.  Including facilitation for each summer curriculum institute; facilitation for 

each weekend planning retreat with Principal and other key staff; facilitation for bi-weekly meetings from 

January – August; facilitation for hiring protocol. 

 

In-kind funds of $19,670.00 are matched funding to support a portion of the salary and time for the 

Executive Director and the Administrator at CFT. 

 

Georgia State University School of Music (GSU) 

requested through RT3 – $9,000.00 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

$4,000.00 This amount will cover the GSU teaching artist who will focus on the iPad ensemble 

composition and performance experience. 

 

$5,000.00 This amount will cover Dr. Carlisle’s salary.  Dr. Carlisle is responsible for curriculum 

development for the 8
th
 grade music technology program.  She will also be conducting a research study of 

5
th
 grade music technology. 

 

************************************************************************************* 

 

FRINGE BENEFITS: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR ONE = $1,698.00 

requested through RT3 - $1,698.00 

in-kind funds - $36,431.20  
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$1,698.00  These funds will cover fringe benefits of the GSU Teaching Artist (7.7%) and fringe benefits 

of Dr. Carlisle’s salary (27.8%). 

 

In-kind funding has been allocated by Drew Charter to the amount of $5,611.20 to cover the fringe costs 

of the Project Director/Director of Teaching and Learning.  The CF Foundation has allocated 27,090.00 to 

cover fringe costs for the Director of Program Design and Implementation, the grant 

administrator/assistant and the Principal. 

 

In-kind funding from the CFT to the amount of $3,730.00 has been allocated to cover fringe costs for the 

Executive Director and the Administrator.   

 

************************************************************************************* 

 

TRAVEL: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR ONE = $30,700.00 

 

Center for Teaching (CFT) at the Westminster Schools 

requested through RT3 - $30,700.00 

in-kind funds - $16,400.00 

 

$30,700.00 This amount will cover the airfare, travel and lodging costs for Drew faculty including New 

Tech Network leadership/principal training in February 2013; costs associated with bringing newly hired 

high school staff to participate in the 4 monthly retreats between March and June 2013; cost to send 8 

faculty to attend the Solution Tree’s PLC Work Institute; costs associated with the Principal attending the 

21
st
 Century High School and Practices for Hi Performance at Harvard Graduate School of Education; 

costs associated with leadership retreats between January and June 2013. 

 

In-kind funds of $1,400.00 have been allocated by the CFT to support additional travel costs incurred by 

the grant activities.   

 

In-kind funds of $15,000 have been allocated by the CF Foundation to support additional travel costs. 

 

************************************************************************************* 

EQUIPMENT: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR ONE = $8,000 

requested through RT3 - $8,000  

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

This amount will cover the cost of one laptop computer for each 9
th
 grader (assumes 105 laptops total), 

warranties for each laptop, laptop cases, 4 laptop cards, site licenses and software for each machine.  The 

laptops (or other computing devices) in a one-to-one learning environment immediately makes learning 

more equitable, opening infinite opportunities for collaborative and self-directed learning.   

 

105 laptops at $500.00 each (including warranties and supporting software) = $52,500.00 

4 laptop carts at $7,000.00 each = $2,600.00 

Site licenses for supporting software = $2,600.00 

105 laptop sleeves at $20.00 each = $2,100.00 

 

************************************************************************************* 
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SUPPLIES: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR ONE = $10,650.00 

requested through RT3 - $10,650.00 

in-kind funds - $900.00 

 

Center for Teaching (CFT) at the Westminster Schools 

requested through RT3 - $9,650.00 

in-kind funds - $900.00 

This will cover the cost of curriculum development resources.  These resources would be determined by 

the Drew faculty and leadership, who will identify the specific needs of curriculum development to 

determine what is purchased.   

 

In-kind funds of $900.00 from the CFT will be used to supplement additional costs associated with CFT 

activities for the grant. 

 

Georgia State University School of Music 

requested through RT3 - $1,000 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

This will cover the iPad learning applications.  Sibelius is a music notation program whereby students can 

compose and playback music using staff notation. The ipad2 apps will enable students to explore the 

potential of virtual musical instruments and music compositions with these apps. 

 

************************************************************************************* 

 

CONTRACTUAL: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR ONE = $209,959.73 

requested through RT3 - $209,959.73 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

Drew Charter School and Georgia Tech CEISMC - $97,333.67 

requested through RT3 - $97,333.67 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

Total Personnel and Fringe: $65,826.06 

CEISMC Project Coordinator: $6,666.67 = Two months of salary is requested.  A CEIMSC Education 

Outreach Coordinator will work with Drew staff and Georgia Tech graduate students to plan and 

implement the summer program.  

 

RT3 Project Evaluator:  $24,000.00 = A CEISMC Research Scientist or Associate will evaluate project 

components.  4 months of salary are requested. 

 

Graduate Students $21,333.00: Four doctoral students will be hired to teach summer courses.  They will 

receive payment of $800.00 per week (one week planning and four weeks of teaching).  One doctoral 

student at $5,333.00 to develop and work with 9
th
 grade students. 

 

Undergraduate Students $4,800.00: Two undergraduate students will be hired as students’ assistance at 

$600.00 per week for four weeks. 

 

Fringe $9,026.39: Fringe benefits are calculated per Institute guidelines as follows: 

 University faculty and staff: 27.9% in one year 

 Graduate and undergraduate students 1.8% 
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Total Travel: $9,700.00 This amount will cover the cost for one school bus at $200.00 for daily travel to 

and from Drew and Georgia Tech.  Costs for one motor coach at $800.00 for one industry partner tour per 

week.  Travel funds request for evaluation and transcription are calculated by the state mileage rate 

totaling $2,500. 

 

Total Supplies: $12,750.00 This amount will cover the cost of meals calculated at $15.00/participant per 

day in Georgia Tech Student Center or another location for 100 students, totaling 1,500.00.  Note: for 

many students, this will be the only meal they receive during the day.  $250.00 is requested for copies.  

Materials and supplies for the summer programs are calculated at $50.00 per student for 100 students, 

totaling $5,000.00.   

 

Total Other: $2,000.00 This amount will cover transcription services for the project evaluation 

conducted by Dr. Meltem Alemdar and Dr. Jessica Gale at the CEISMC Evaluation Group. 

 

Total Indirect Costs: $7,057.61 This amount represents a 10% negotiated rate. 

 

 

Drew Charter School and New Tech Network - $112,626.06 

This amount covers the cost one year of support from New Tech Network for the development and 

implementation of the new high school.  Activities and support include: 

 

 Prior to school opening NTN offers tours for Drew leadership, community, and parent planning 

teams to New Tech high schools, leads ongoing school planning process, provides training on 

web based tools and systems to access resources, meet with district/school team to assess 

readiness to implement (facilities, technology, staffing, etc.) 

 Prior to school opening, newly assigned principals have routine professional development, 

introduction to New Tech design, planning the master schedule, building community support, 

inclusion of college courses, advisory and other supports,  internship opportunities,  professional 

culture, data processes, hiring resources, etc.   

 Includes ongoing follow-up prior to school opening, newly appointed staff and principal,  meet 

job-alike colleagues, intro to PBL, integrated courses, school wide learning outcomes, alignment 

to standards, rigor, school culture, PLC's, includes ongoing follow-up to New Schools Training at 

Annual Summer Conference. 

 Prior to opening, new staff participates in 5 day summer training focusing on: PBL, web based 

tools, create school wide learning outcomes, building culture, understanding NTN of schools as 

resource. 

 Leadership development, PBL, school culture, assessment of progress, effective use of web tools, 

review of student work, literacy across the curriculum, critical friends, alignment to standards, 

data review, content specific coaching, differentiation and scaffolding tools, benchmark review, 

school success rubric analysis, selection of school certified teachers and trainers, selection 

process for school as Demonstration site 

 Topic specific webinars specific designed for Drew’s staff and leadership.  Content specific 

topics, assessment, classroom management, data review, literacy, use of web tools, PBL design 

and critical friends. 

 Yearly fall/spring content specific meetings with other regional content colleagues, focus on PBL, 

successes, challenges, sharing, critical friends 

 Yearly fall/spring meeting of NTN leaders: build community of practice, attendee generated 

topics, focus on data review and review of student work, assessments and evaluation of progress, 

community support, culture, etc. 
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 Network wide conference, includes training for newly hired school staff, school staff 

presentations and sessions, principal training sessions, Superintendents Summit, sharing of best 

practices, web-based learning management system for staff, students and parents:  includes PBL 

resources and organizer, Project Library, Resource Library, Student and staff interface, 

Gradebook (content and school wide learning outcomes), calendar, journal interface with national 

network schools, parent access. 

 

Personnel: $27,555.95 

Fringe: $9,369.02 

Travel: $6,873.34 

Other (Events): 34,737.43 

Other (Admin. Finance, Data Coordinator and Tech support): $34,090.32 

 

************************************************************************************* 

 

CONSTRUCTION: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR ONE = $0.00 

requested through RT3 - $0.00 

in-kind funds - $2,103,539.00 

 

In-kind funds of $2,103,539.00 from the CF Foundation have been approved for the architectural design 

and construction documents for the new facility. 

 

************************************************************************************* 

OTHER: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR ONE = $22,700.00 

requested through RT3 - $22,700.00 

in-kind funds - $18,050,000.00 

 

Center for Teaching (CFT) at the Westminster Schools 

requested through RT3 - $15,700.00 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

This amount will cover workshop site rental and registration fees for leadership weekend retreats, bi-

weekly faculty meetings, week-long summer curriculum institutes and professional development 

conferences including Solution Tree PLC, Practices for High Performance at Harvard GSE, Leading the 

21
st
 Century High School at Balancing Your Contrasting Roles at Dean of Students.  It will also cover the 

inclusion of CFT Executive Director to attend the NTN professional development opportunities to support 

learning’s and best practices locally. 

 

 

Drew Charter School 

requested through RT3 - $7,000.000 

in-kind funds - $18,050,000.00 

 

This amount will cover the cost of the 9
th
 grade orientation in the summer of 2013 for the entering high 

school class.  This cost assumes $70 per student for 100 students’ food, materials, teacher stipends, 

lodging and transportation.  The program will fun 3-5 days depending on the needs determined by Drew 

leadership in the best interest of students.   

 

In-kind funds have been allocated: $10,000,000.00 by the CF Foundation towards the capital campaign 

and to fund the 10-year operating gap during the start-up phase of the high school; $35,000.00 by the CF 

Foundation for the recruitment of new faculty; $15,000.00 for the recruitment of students and families; 
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and $8,000,000.00 by the East Lake Foundation for the value of the land for the high school and middle 

school site. 

 

************************************************************************************* 

 

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS REQUESTED THROUGH RT3: $317,702.73 

TOTAL IN-KIND FUNDS FOR DIRECT COSTS: $20,382,940.20 
 

************************************************************************************* 

INDIRECT COSTS: TOTAL FOR YEAR ONE = $31,770.27 

DREW CHARTER SCHOOL 

requested through RT3 - $31,770.27 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

These funds will cover 10% of the total budget for year one to cover indirect costs incurred by Drew 

Charter School. 

 

*************************************************************************************

TRAINING STIPENDS: TOTAL FOR YEAR ONE = $10,000.00 

Center for Teaching (CFT) at the Westminster Schools 

requested through RT3  - $10,000.00 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

This amount will cover faculty stipends at $125/day per person for approximately 10 faculty to participate 

in up to 8 days of leadership retreats, bi-weekly meetings, and two, weekly summer curriculum planning 

institutes.  DSCPE would like to hire faculty as early as possible in 2013, but recognizes that many staff 

will be fully employed and on contract at other schools.  Stipends will allow Drew to compensate new 

faculty for their time prior to July 1, 2013 when they are full-time employees of Drew and for hours 

outside of regular school. 

 

************************************************************************************* 

TOTAL COSTS REQUESTED THROUGH RT3: $359,473.00 

TOTAL IN-KIND FUNDS FOR COSTS: $20,382,940.20 
************************************************************************************* 
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Drew Charter School Partners for Expansion 

Innovation Fund – Race to the Top 

Year 2 (2013-2014) 
 

The costs below align with the line item budget included on pages 13-16 of this document. 

 

*************************************************************************************

PERSONNEL:  TOTAL COST FOR YEAR TWO = $27,925.00 

Drew Charter School  

requested through RT3 – $14,000.00 

in-kind funds - $124,500.00 (CF Foundation) 

 

$14,000.00 This amount will cover the cost of a technology consultant implement and monitor the unique 

media and technology plan for the high school to support student learning. The consultant will work 

directly with the full time technology support staff at Drew high school.    

 

Drew has allocated $27,000.00 of in-kind funds to cover the cost of 25% of the salary of the Project 

Director/Director of Teaching and Learning.   

 

In kind funds of $79,000.00 have been funded by the CF Foundation to cover the salary of the Director of 

Planning and Implementation who will also work on administering the RT3 grant with the Project 

Director at Drew Charter School. 

 

Center for Teaching (CFT) at the Westminster Schools 

requested through RT3 - $2,925.00 

in-kind funds - $18,500.00 
 

$2,925.00 This amount was will cover the cost of the Executive Director and Administrator at the Center 

For Teaching during year one.  Including facilitation for on-going professional development and faculty 

professional learning communities meetings during the school year.   

 

In kind funds of $18,500 have been allocated from the CFT to support the salary of the Executive 

Director and the Administrator at CFT for work on this grant. 

 

Georgia State University School of Music (GSU) 

Requested through RT3 – $14,000.00 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

$4,000.00 This amount will cover the GSU teaching artist who will focus on the 8
th
 grade iPad ensemble 

composition and performance experience.  

 

$7,000.00 This amount will cover Dr. Carlisle’s salary.  Dr. Carlisle is responsible for curriculum 

development for the music technology program.  She will also be conducting a research study of 9
th
 grade 

music technology class to uncover students’ development of computational thinking and musical 

understanding as they participate in the program and create original music. 

 

$4,000 This amount will cover the cost of a CSU Master of Music Composition graduate student who 

brings expertise with Scratch, PureData and working with students. 

 

************************************************************************************* 
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FRINGE BENEFITS: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR TWO = $6,245.02 

Requested through RT3 - $6,245.02 

In-kind funds - $25,931.20 
 

$6,245.02 These funds will cover fringe benefits of the GSU Teaching Artist (7.7%); fringe benefits of 

Dr. Carlisle’s salary (27.8%); and fringe benefits for the Master of Music Composition )7.7%). 

 

In kind funds have been allocated by Drew Charter to the amount of $5,611.20 to cover the benefits of the 

Project Manager.   

 

In kind funds of $16,590.00 have been allocated by CF Foundation to cover the fringe of the Director of 

Design and Implementation who will support the Project Manager.  

 

The CFT has allocated funds of $3,730.00 to cover fringe benefits of the Executive Director and 

Administrator at CFT for work on this grant. 

 

************************************************************************************* 

 

TRAVEL: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR TWO = $27,000.00 

 

Center for Teaching (CFT) at the Westminster Schools 

requested through RT3 - $27,000.00 

in-kind funds - $1,900 

 

$27,000 This amount will cover the airfare, travel and lodging costs for Drew faculty including: bringing 

selected faculty to Atlanta during pre-planning weekend retreats (both leadership and teachers), 

professional development conferences including Solution Tree PLC, Practices for High Performance at 

Harvard GSE, Leading the 21
st
 Century High School at Balancing Your Contrasting Roles at Dean of 

Students.  It will also cover travel and lodging costs for CFT Executive Director to attend the NTN 

professional development opportunities to support learning’s and best practices locally. 

 

In-kind funds of $1,900.00 have been allocated by CFT to support travel costs that exceed the request 

amount. 

 

************************************************************************************* 

EQUIPMENT: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR TWO = $68,000 

requested through RT3 - $68,000.00 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

Drew Charter School 

requested through RT3 - $60,000 This amount will cover the cost of one laptop computer for each 9
th
 

grader (assumes 105 laptops total), warranties for each laptop, laptop cases, 4 laptop cards, site licenses 

and software for each machine.  The laptops (or other computing devices) in a one-to-one learning 

environment immediately makes learning more equitable, opening infinite opportunities for collaborative 

and self-directed learning.   

 

105 laptops at $500.00 each (including warranties and supporting software) = $52,500.00 

4 laptop carts at $7,000.00 each = $2,600.00 

Site licenses for supporting software = $2,600.00 

105 laptop sleeves at $20.00 each = $2,100.00 
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Georgia State University School of Music 

requested through RT3 - $8,000  

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

This amount will cover the purchase of Apple iPad2 tablets and AppleCare Protection Plan for the 9
th
 

grade program.  The iPads will be used for the iPad band initiative that will be a partnership between the 

GSU School of Music and Drew Charter School. The iPads will enable students to engage in music 

technology module project. Sibelius is a music notation program whereby students can compose and 

playback music using staff notation.  

 

************************************************************************************* 

SUPPLIES: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR TWO = $9,625.00 

requested through RT3 - $9,625.00 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

 

Center for Teaching (CFT) at the Westminster Schools 

requested through RT3 - $8,625.00 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

This will cover the cost of curriculum, leadership and professional development resources.  These 

resources would be determined by the Drew faculty and leadership, who will identify the specific needs 

of curriculum development to determine what is purchased.   

 

Georgia State University School of Music 

Requested through RT3 - $1,000 

In-kind funds - $0.00 

 

This amount will cover the purchase of Apple iPad2 tablets and AppleCare Protection Plan for each 

device.  The iPads will be used for the iPad band initiative that will be a partnership between the GSU 

School of Music and Drew Charter School. The iPads will enable students to engage in music technology 

module project. Sibelius is a music notation program whereby students can compose and playback music 

using staff notation.  

 

************************************************************************************* 

 

CONTRACTUAL: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR TWO = $184,708.62 

requested through RT3 - $184,708.62 

in-kind - $0.00 
 

Drew Charter School and Georgia Tech CEISMC - $97,333.67 

requested through RT3 - $97,333.67 

in-kind - $0.00 

 

Total Personnel and Fringe: $65,826.06 

CEISMC Project Coordinator: $6,666.67 = Two months of salary is requested.  A CEIMSC Education 

Outreach Coordinator will work with Drew staff and Georgia Tech graduate students to plan and 

implement the summer program.  
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RT3 Project Evaluator:  $24,000.00 = A CEISMC Research Scientist or Associate will evaluate project 

components.  4 months of salary are requested. 

 

Graduate Students $21,333.00: Four doctoral students will be hired to teach summer courses.  They will 

receive payment of $800.00 per week (one week planning and four weeks of teaching).  One doctoral 

student at $5,333.00 to develop and work with 9
th
 grade students. 

 

Undergraduate Students $4,800.00: Two undergraduate students will be hired as students’ assistance at 

$600.00 per week for four weeks. 

 

Fringe $9,026.39: Fringe benefits are calculated per Institute guidelines as follows: 

 University faculty and staff: 27.9% in one year 

 Graduate and undergraduate students 1.8% 

 

Total Travel: $9,700.00 This amount will cover the cost for one school bus at $200.00 for daily travel to 

and from Drew and Georgia Tech.  Costs for one motor coach at $800.00 for one industry partner tour per 

week.  Travel funds request for evaluation and transcription are calculated by the state mileage rate 

totaling $2,500. 

 

Total Supplies: $12,750.00 This amount will cover the cost of meals calculated at $15.00/participant per 

day in Georgia Tech Student Center or another location for 100 students, totaling $1,500.00.  Note: for 

many students, this will be the only meal they receive during the day.  $250.00 is requested for copies.  

Materials and supplies for the summer programs are calculated at $50.00 per student for 100 students, 

totaling $5,000.00.   

 

Total Other: $2,000.00 This amount will cover transcription services for the project evaluation 

conducted by Dr. Meltem Alemdar and Dr. Jessica Gale at the CEISMC Evaluation Group. 

 

Total Indirect Costs: $7,057.61 This amount represents a 10% negotiated rate. 

 

 

Drew Charter School and New Tech Network - $87,374.95 

This amount covers the cost of year two support from New Tech Network for the continued development 

and opening of the new high school.  Activities and support include: 

 

 NTN offers tours for Drew leadership, community, and parent planning teams to New Tech high 

schools, leads ongoing school planning process, provides training on web based tools and systems 

to access resources, meet with district/school team to assess readiness to implement (facilities, 

technology, staffing, etc.) 

 In summer 2014, newly assigned leadership have routine professional development, introduction 

to New Tech design, planning the master schedule, building community support, inclusion of 

college courses, advisory and other supports,  internship opportunities,  professional culture, data 

processes, hiring resources, etc.   

 Includes ongoing follow-up prior to school opening, newly appointed staff and principal,  meet 

job-alike colleagues, intro to PBL, integrated courses, school wide learning outcomes, alignment 

to standards, rigor, school culture, PLC's, includes ongoing follow-up to New Schools Training at 

Annual Summer Conference. 

 New 9
th
 and 10

th
 grade staff participate in 5 day summer training focusing on: PBL, web based 

tools, create school wide learning outcomes, building culture, understanding NTN of schools as 

resource. 
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 Leadership development, PBL, school culture, assessment of progress, effective use of web tools, 

review of student work, literacy across the curriculum, critical friends, alignment to standards, 

data review, content specific coaching, differentiation and scaffolding tools, benchmark review, 

school success rubric analysis, selection of school certified teachers and trainers, selection 

process for school as Demonstration site 

 Topic specific webinars specific designed for Drew’s staff and leadership.  Content specific 

topics, assessment, classroom management, data review, literacy, use of web tools, PBL design 

and critical friends. 

 Network wide conference, includes training for newly hired school staff, school staff 

presentations and sessions, principal training sessions, Superintendents Summit, sharing of best 

practices, web-based learning management system for staff, students and parents:  includes PBL 

resources and organizer, Project Library, Resource Library, Student and staff interface, 

Gradebook (content and school wide learning outcomes), calendar, journal interface with national 

network schools, parent access. 

 

Personnel: $16,088.51 

Fringe: $5,470.09 

Travel: $5,155.01 

Other (Events): 26,571.02 

Other (Admin. Finance, Data Coordinator and Tech support): $34,090.32 

 

************************************************************************************* 

 

CONSTRUCTION: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR TWO = $0.00 

requested through RT3 - $0.00 

in-kind funds - $57,896,461.00 

 

$47,896,461.00 This amount will be raised by the East Lake Foundation and CF Foundation and will 

cover the cost of construction; furniture, fixtures and equipment; site preparation work; architectural 

design; engineering; and general contractor.  Of the total $73 million funds needed for the entire project, 

CF Foundation has committed $10,000,000.00 towards capital campaign and East Lake Foundation has 

donated the land, valued at $8,000,000.00.  An additional private, philanthropic donation of 

$10,000,000.00 has been committed and $15,000,000.00 has been identified through federally funded 

New Market Tax Credits. 

 

$10,000,000.00 State Bond request.  Drew Charter School respectfully requests $10,000,000.00 from the 

State of Georgia’s bond fund.  The academic culture at Drew, one of student-driven scholarship, creativity 

and innovation, is facilitated and enhanced by a state-of-the art, 21st century learning environment.  

 

Drew Charter School, the East Lake Foundation and the CF Foundation, engaged in an in-depth study of 

the high school site prior to committing to building new on the East Lake campus.  The group 

investigated five sites and four existing school facilities in the community with a team of architects to 

inspect the structure, grounds and utilities.  After an analysis by Perkins + Will, it was determined that 

renovating a surplus building carried significant risk to the pipeline and was not cost effective. There 

were significant costs associated with acquisition, capital outlay required to renovate, and maintenance 

and repair of an older facility.  Furthermore, sites that were not contiguous to the existing Drew campus 

caused the entire pipeline lose economy of scale and an operating gap was opened.   

 

The new Drew Charter Senior Academy is designed to offer students integrated project labs connecting 

core academic subjects to each other and the arts; fully-equipped science labs, additional specialized labs 

(potentially a fabrication lab and a “tinker lab”) providing spaces for students to translate learning into 
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physical creations; two integrated arts spaces pushing the arts into the core curriculum; customized music 

rooms to support a robust orchestra, chorus and band; a 6,000 square foot learning commons (media 

center) emphasizing the integration of technology, disciplines, collaboration and the pursuit of learning; a 

competitive athletic complex supporting the development of sportsmanship, competition, physical fitness 

and teamwork; and a 500 seat performing arts center to foster student theatrical and performing arts. The 

transformative campus, acting as “the third teacher,” (Cannon Design, VS Furniture, Bruce Mau Design, 

2010) utilizing energy and water efficiencies and environmental technologies, supports our STEAM 

theme as well as our PBL approach to teaching and learning with transparency, flexible spaces, integrated 

learning forums and integrated technology. 

 

The top-of-the-line facility design and plans represent a tremendous opportunity to leverage private and 

public local and national dollars into education in Georgia.  DCSPE sincerely hopes that the State will 

consider being a funding partner on this model facility that will inform best practices for STEAM and 

PBL education across the nation.  

 

************************************************************************************* 

OTHER: TOTAL COST FOR YEAR TWO = $22,200.00 

requested through RT3 - $22,200.00 

in-kind funds - $500,000 

 

Drew Charter School 

requested through RT3 - $11,000.000 

in-kind funds - $500,000 (CF Foundation) 

 

This amount will cover the cost of the 9
th
 grade and 10

th
 grade orientation in the summer of 2014 for the 

entering high school class and the orientation of the 10
th
 grade in the new facility.  This cost assumes 200 

students food, materials, teacher stipends, lodging and transportation.  The program will fun 3-5 days 

depending on the needs determined by Drew leadership in the best interest of students.   

 

In-kind funds of $500,000.00 have been allocated by the CF Foundation to cover the cost of one year in a 

temporary location serving 100 9
th
 graders and potentially including some grades from the Junior 

Academy to allow room at the existing Drew facility for expansion in grades Pre-k through 5. 

 

Center for Teaching (CFT) at the Westminster Schools 

requested through RT3  - $11,200.00 

in-kind funds - $3,000.00 

 

This amount will cover workshop site rental and registration fees for leadership weekend retreats for hired 

10
th
 grade teachers, bi-weekly faculty meetings, two week-long summer curriculum institutes and 

professional development conferences including Solution Tree PLC, the NTN Annual Conference for all 

new teaching staff and returning teaching staff, NTN Leadership Summit for the Principal and key 

leadership and Meeting of the Minds.  It will also cover the inclusion of CFT Executive Director to attend 

the NTN professional development opportunities to support learning’s and best practices locally. 

 

************************************************************************************* 

TOTAL DIRECT COSTS REQUESTED THROUGH RT3: $345,712.64 

TOTAL IN-KIND FUNDS FOR DIRECT COSTS: $58,551,792.20 
************************************************************************************* 

INDIRECT COSTS: TOTAL FOR YEAR TWO = $34,571.26 

DREW CHARTER SCHOOL 

requested through RT3 - $34,571.26 
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in-kind funds $0.00 

 

Drew is requesting 10% of the total budget for year one to cover indirect costs incurred by Drew Charter 

School. 

 

************************************************************************************* 

 

TRAINING STIPENDS: TOTAL FOR YEAR TWO = $10,000.00 

Center for Teaching (CFT) at the Westminster Schools 

requested through RT3 - $10,000.00 

in-kind funds - $0.00 

 

This amount will cover faculty stipends at $125/day per person to cover participation in weekend retreats 

for leadership, bi-weekly meetings for all hired staff and two, weekly summer curriculum planning 

institutes.  DSCPE would like to hire faculty for the 2014-15 school year as soon as possible, but 

recognizes that many staff will be fully employed and on contract at other schools.  Stipends will allow 

Drew to compensate new faculty for their time prior to July 1, 2014 when they are full-time employees of 

Drew and for hours outside of regular school. 

 

************************************************************************************* 

TOTAL COSTS REQUESTED THROUGH RT3: $390,283.90 

TOTAL IN-KIND FUNDS FOR COSTS: $58,551,792.20 
************************************************************************************* 
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INNOVATION FUNDS - Grant Year 1 (2012-2013) 

Budget 

Categories 
Project Year 1  Description  

  (a)   

1. Personnel 
 

  

Subtotal:  $         4,000.00 GSU Teaching Artist 

 $          33,995.00  $         5,000.00 GSU Dr. Carlisle 

  $         4,995.00 CFT Personnel (staff) 

  $       20,000.00 Drew Technology Consultant 

2. Fringe 

Benefits 
$         1,698.00 GSU Fringe  

3. Travel 
 

  

Subtotal:  $       30,700.00 CFT Travel (airfare, lodging) 

4. Equipment 
 

  

  $         8,000.00 Drew Apple iPads - 8th grade 

5. Supplies 
 

  

Subtotal:   
*Participant Support Costs - no indirect costs 

 $          10,650.00  $         1,000.00 GSU Materials 

  $         9,650.00 CFT Supplies (materials, food) 

6. Contractual 
 

  

Subtotal:  $     112,626.06  New Tech Network annual contract  

 $        209,959.73  $       97,333.67  Georgia Tech CEISMC contract  

7. Construction 
 

  

8. Other 
 

  

Subtotal:  
$       15,700.00 CFT Other - (workshop site rental, registration fees) 

 $          22,700.00  $         7,000.00 9th Grade Orientation 

9. Total Direct 

Costs (lines 1-8) 
$     317,702.73   

10. Indirect 

Costs*  
  

  $       31,770.27 Indirect Project Costs 

11. Training 

Stipends  
  

  $       10,000.00 CFT Training (stipends for Drew teachers) 

12. Total Costs 

(lines 9-11) 
$     359,473.00   
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IN-KIND AND BOND FUNDS - GRANT YEAR 1 (2012-2013) 

Budget 

Categories 
 Project Year 1    

   (a)    

1. Personnel     

Subtotal:  $       19,670.00 CFT Personnel (match) 

 $        175,670.00   $       79,000.00  
CF Dir. Of Design and Implementation/Grant Manager Salary 

(match) 

   $        25,000.00  CF Grant Assistant (match)  

 $       25,000.00 Principal Stipend (match) 

 $       27,000.00 25% of Project Director salary (match) 

2. Fringe 

Benefits 
    

Subtotal:   $         3,730.00  CFT Fringe (match) 

 $          35,431.20  $       27,090.00  CF Employee Benefits & Healthcare (match)  

 $        5,611.20 Drew Fringe for Project Director (match) 

3. Travel 
 

  

Subtotal:  $         1,400.00 CFT Travel (match) 

 $          16,400.00  $       15,000.00 CF Travel (match)  

4. Equipment 
 

  

5. Supplies 
 

  

  $            900.00 CFT Supplies (match) 

6. Contractual 
 

  

7. Construction 
 

  

  $  2,103,539.00 Architectural Design and Construction (match) 

8. Other 
 

  

Subtotal:  $       35,000.00  High School staff recruitment and training (match)  

 $    

18,050,000.00  
$       15,000.00  Student recruitment and orientation (match)  

  $  8,000,000.00  East Lake Foundation land donation (match)  

  $ 10,000,000.00  CF Foundation operating gap funding (match)  

9. Total Direct 

Costs (lines 1-8) 
$ 20,382,940.20   

10. Indirect 

Costs*  
  

11. Training 

Stipends  
  

12. Total Costs 

(lines 9-11) 
$ 20,382,940.20   
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INNOVATION FUNDS - Grant Year 2 (2013-2014) 

Budget Categories  Project Year 2   Description  

   (b)    

1. Personnel     

Subtotal:  $         4,000.00 GSU Teaching Artist 

 $           27,925.00  $         7,000.00 GSU Dr. Carlisle 

  $         2,925.00 CFT Personnel 

  $        14,000.00 Drew Technology Consultant 

 $         4,000.00 GSU Master of Music Composition 

2. Fringe Benefits 
 

  

Subtotal: $         6,254.02 GSU Fringe 

3. Travel 
 

  

Subtotal:  $       27,000.00  CFT Travel (airfare, lodging)  

4. Equipment 
 

  

Subtotal:  $       60,000.00 Drew One-to-one computers - 9th grade 

 $           68,000.00  $         8,000.00 Drew Apple iPads - 9th grade 

5. Supplies 
 

  

Subtotal:   
*Participant Support Costs - no indirect costs 

 $             9,625.00  $         1,000.00 GSU Materials 

  $         8,625.00 CFT Supplies 

6. Contractual     

Subtotal:   $       87,374.95   New Tech Network annual contract  

 $         184,708.62   $       97,333.67   Georgia Tech CEISMC contract  

7. Construction     

8. Other     

Subtotal:  
 $       11,200.00  CFT Other - (workshop site rental, registration fees) 

 $           22,200.00   $       11,000.00  9th - 10th Grade Orientation 

9. Total Direct 

Costs (lines 1-8) 
 $     345,712.64    

10. Indirect 

Costs* 
    

   $       34,571.26 Indirect Project Costs 

11. Training 

Stipends 
    

   $       10,000.00  CFT Training 

12. Total Costs 

(lines 9-11) 
 $     390,283.90    
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IN-KIND AND BOND FUNDS - GRANT YEAR 2 (2013-2014) 

Budget 

Categories 
 Project Year 2    

   (b)    

1. Personnel     

Subtotal:  $       18,500.00 CFT Personnel (match) 

 $       124,500.00 $       79,000.00 Laura Bollman, Project Director/Grant Manager Salary (match) 

 $       27,000.00 25% of Project Director salary (match) 

2. Fringe Benefits 
 

  

Subtotal:  $         3,730.00 CFT Fringe (match) 

$25,931.20 $        5,611.20 Drew Fringe (match) 

 $       16,590.00 CF Fringe (match) 

3. Travel 
 

  

Subtotal:   $         1,900.00  CFT Travel (match) 

4. Equipment     

5. Supplies     

6. Contractual 
 

  

7. Construction 
 

  

Subtotal:  $ 47,896,461.00  Facility costs (match)  

 $    57,896,461.00  $ 10,000,000.00 Georgia State bond funding for new facility 

8. Other 
 

  

Subtotal:  $         3,000.00 CFT 

 $         503,000.00  $     500,000.00  Temporary high school site location (match)   

9. Total Direct 

Costs (lines 1-8) 
$ 58,551,792.20   

10. Indirect 

Costs*  
  

11. Training 

Stipends 
    

12. Total Costs 

(lines 9-11) 
  $ 58,551,792.20   
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 1 

 
 
 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
To the Board of Directors 
Drew Charter School, Inc. 
 
We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Drew Charter School, Inc. 
(a Georgia not-for-profit organization) (the “School”) as of June 30, 2011 and the related 
statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the School’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
financial statements based on our audit. The prior year summarized comparative information has 
been derived from the School’s June 30, 2010 financial statements, and in our report dated 
September 29, 2010, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of Drew Charter School, Inc. as of June 30, 2011, and the changes in its net 
assets and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

 
GIFFORD, HILLEGASS & INGWERSEN, LLP 

September 26, 2011 
Atlanta, Georgia 
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 
 

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 

 

See accompanying notes. 
 

2 

2011 2010

Cash and cash equivalents 4,429,291$    3,614,012$    
Accounts receivable – Title I Funds (Note B) 79,812 293,935         
Pledges receivable – related party (Note F) 18,819 400,000         
Other receivables (Note B) 616,544 500                
Property and equipment, net (Note C) 273,891 443,629

TOTAL ASSETS 5,418,357$    4,752,076$    

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note E) 1,228,085$    1,672,810$    
Due to related party (Note F) 118,404         111,922         

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,346,489      1,784,732      

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes E, G and H)

Net Assets
Unrestricted 3,966,991 2,860,733
Temporarily restricted (Note D) 104,877 106,611         

TOTAL NET ASSETS 4,071,868      2,967,344      

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 5,418,357$    4,752,076$    

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 
 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 
(with comparative totals for 2010) 

 
 

See accompanying notes. 
 

3 

2010
Temporarily

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

Support and Revenue
Atlanta Public School funding 8,142,805$    -$                 8,142,805$    9,742,443$    
Facilities grant 62,000 -                   62,000           -                     
Bright from the Start grant 177,468 -                   177,468         177,676
Title 1 funding 342,051         -                   342,051         444,015
Contributions 51,693           473,686       525,379         916,344         
Other income 6,040             -                   6,040             26,338           

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 8,782,057      473,686       9,255,743      11,306,816    

Net Assets Released from Restrictions
Satisfaction of restrictions 475,420         (475,420)      -                     -                     

TOTAL SUPPORT, REVENUE AND NET 
ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS 9,257,477      (1,734)          9,255,743      11,306,816    

Expenses
Program expenses

Instructional expenses 6,198,975      -                   6,198,975      6,122,453
Facilities expenses 652,007         -                   652,007         686,321
Technology expenses 590,081         -                   590,081         431,031

Support expenses
Management and general 2,048,676      -                   2,048,676      2,256,831

TOTAL EXPENSES 9,489,739      -                   9,489,739      9,496,636      

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS (232,262)       (1,734)          (233,996)        1,810,180      
FROM OPERATIONS

Refunds from the Internal Revenue Service 
(Note H) 1,338,520 -                   1,338,520      -                     

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,106,258      (1,734)          1,104,524      1,810,180      

Net Assets at Beginning of Year 2,860,733      106,611       2,967,344      1,157,164      

Net Assets at End of Year 3,966,991$    104,877$     4,071,868$    2,967,344$    

2011
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 
 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 

For the Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 
 
 

See accompanying notes. 
 

4 

2011 2010
Cash Flows from Operating Activites

Change in net assets 1,104,524$    1,810,180$    
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets  

to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:  
Depreciation 169,738         208,589         
Increase in receivables (20,740)          (287,650)        
Decrease in payables (438,243)        (1,828,715)     

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 815,279         (97,596)          

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Property and equipment purchases -                     (422,475)        

NET CASH USED IN 
INVESTING ACTIVITIES -                     (422,475)        

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 815,279         (520,071)        

Cash at Beginning of Year 3,614,012      4,134,083      

Cash at End of Year 4,429,291$    3,614,012$    
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
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NOTE A—ORGANIZATION AND BUSINESS 
 
Drew Charter School, Inc. (the “School”), a Georgia not-for-profit corporation, was organized to 
operate the Charles R. Drew Charter School located in the East Lake community. The mission of 
the School is to serve the children and families of East Lake and the surrounding communities by 
providing a learning environment that emphasizes high achievement and character development. 
 
The School was granted a charter (the “Charter”) by the Georgia Board of Education in August 
1999. The Charter was renewed and currently expires June 30, 2015. The Charter permits the 
School to operate as a Charter School under the Atlanta Public School system, provided the 
School operates within the guidelines of the Charter and the applicable state and federal laws. 
Under the terms of the Charter, the School receives an allocation from the Atlanta Public Schools 
which is based on enrollment.  
 
The School’s support comes primarily from the Atlanta Public Schools. 
 
Average enrollment for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 was 771 and 769 students, 
respectively. 
 
 
NOTE B—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
Basis of Accounting: The School prepares its financial statements in accordance with Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958-205, Not-
For-Profit Entities Presentation of Financial Statements. Under FASB ASC 958, the School 
reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to three classes of net 
assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently restricted net 
assets. As of June 30, 2011 and 2010, the School did not have any permanently restricted net 
assets. 
 
The amounts shown for the year ended June 30, 2010 in the accompanying financial statements 
are included to provide a basis for comparison with 2011 and present summarized totals only. 
Accordingly, the 2010 totals are not intended to present all information necessary for a fair 
presentation in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Such information should be read in conjunction with the School’s financial statements 
for the year ended June 30, 2010, from which the summarized information was derived. An 
unqualified opinion was expressed on the June 30, 2010 financial statements. 
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

June 30, 2011 and 2010 
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NOTE B—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES—Continued 
 
Contributions: Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the 
School that is, in substance, unconditional. Contributions that are restricted by the donor are 
reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in which 
the contributions are recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are reported as 
increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets depending on the nature of the 
restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to 
unrestricted net assets. During the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, the School did not 
receive any permanently restricted contributions. The School uses the allowance method to 
determine the uncollectible unconditional promises receivable. The allowance is based on prior 
years’ experience and management’s analysis of specific promises made. 
 
Contributed Services: Contributed services are recognized if the services received (a) create or 
enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) require specialized skills that are provided by individuals 
possessing those skills and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation. 
Many individuals volunteer their time and perform a variety of tasks that assist in the School’s 
activities. The School receives numerous volunteer hours each year that are not valued in the 
financial statements because the services do not meet the criteria. In addition, East Lake 
Foundation provides consulting and accounting services which are not valued in the financial 
statements because the fair value cannot be reasonably determined. 
 
Contributed Use of Facilities: As described in Note F, the School’s facilities and the majority of 
the furniture are provided by the East Lake Foundation. Contribution revenue and related 
program expense has not been recognized in the accompanying statements of activities because 
the fair rental value cannot be reasonably estimated. 
 
Revenue Recognition: Revenue from Atlanta Public Schools and revenue from program fees are 
recognized in the period the service is delivered. Revenue from reimbursement basis grants is 
recognized as related expenditures are made. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents: For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School considers all 
highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. 
The School maintains balances with the bank in excess of federally insured limits. Management 
believes the exposure to loss from such balances to be minimal. 
 
Accounts Receivable: Accounts receivable represents amounts due to the School for Title I 
funding as of June 30, 2011 and 2010 which were received in subsequent months. Reference 
Note F for a description of related party receivables and pledges receivable – related party.  
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NOTE B—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES—Continued  
 
Other Receivables: Other receivables are made up of the following: 
 
IRS Refund of Social Security Payments 591,934$         
Other 24,610

616,544$         

 
Reference Note H for additional information regarding Social Security payments. 
 
Property and Equipment: The School capitalizes all expenditures for furniture, fixtures, and 
equipment in excess of $500. Furniture and equipment are recorded at cost or fair market value, 
if donated, and are depreciated using straight line methods over their estimated useful lives as 
follows: 
 Computer equipment     3 years 
 Curriculum      4 years 
 Other equipment, furniture and fixtures  7 years 
 
Tax Status: Drew Charter School, Inc. is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of 
the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and is classified as an organization which is not a private 
foundation under Section 509(a) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. The School qualifies for the 
charitable contribution deduction. 
 
Management does not believe there are any uncertain tax positions as defined by FASB ASC 
740, Income Taxes. The School could be subject to income tax examinations for its U.S. federal 
tax filings for the current tax year and previous filings for years 2010, 2009, and 2008 still open 
under the statute of limitations. 
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses: The costs of providing the various programs and other 
activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the statement of activities. Accordingly, 
certain indirect costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. 
 
Fair Values of Financial Instruments: The School estimates that the carrying amount for cash and 
cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable approximates fair value because of 
the short-term nature of these instruments. 
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NOTE B—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES—Continued 
 
Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Events Occurring After Report Date: Management has evaluated events and transactions that 
occurred between June 30, 2011 and September 26, 2011, which is the date that the financial 
statements were available to be issued, for possible recognition or disclosure in the financial 
statements.  
 
 
NOTE C—PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 
 
Property and equipment at June 30, 2011 and 2010 is composed of the following: 

2011 2010

Furniture and fixtures 210,459$       213,617$       
Computer equipment 502,286 502,608
Building improvements 22,148 22,148
Curriculum 460,092 460,092
Land improvements 41,294 41,294

1,236,279      1,239,759      
Less accumulated depreciation (962,388)        (796,130)        

Net property and equipment 273,891$       443,629$       

 
 
NOTE D—RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS 
 
Temporarily restricted assets at June 30, 2011 and 2010 are available as follows: 

2011 2010

Technology grant 18,819$         18,819$         
Pre-K program 86,058           87,792           

104,877$       106,611$       

 

A-10 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION AND INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Drew Charter School Partnership for Expansion - Race to the Top Innovation Fund Proposal -  55



DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 
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June 30, 2011 and 2010 
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NOTE E—COMMITMENTS 
 
Contract with EdisonLearning, Inc: The School contracts with EdisonLearning, Inc. (“Edison”) 
to perform management services. The current agreement with Edison (negotiated in July 2009) is 
in effect through June 30, 2012. The School paid Edison a management fee of $565,810 and 
$578,512 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The fee is scheduled to 
increase 3% each year unless the School’s state and federal funding for a School year is 
collectively reduced by greater than 5% from the previous School year, in which case the 
management fee shall be decreased by a comparable percentage.  
 
In addition, Edison pays certain expenses on behalf of the School. The School then reimburses 
Edison for these amounts. Amounts due to Edison of $686,665 and $1,664,416 are included in 
accrued expenses at June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  
   
Leases: The School leases office equipment under non-cancelable operating leases expiring in 
2011. Rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 amounted to approximately 
$42,000 and $39,000, respectively. Future minimum lease payments for the years ending June 30 
are as follows: 
 
2012 33,046$           
2013 33,026

66,072$           
 

 
 
NOTE FRELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The School operated in facilities and with furniture provided and owned by the East Lake 
Foundation (the “Foundation”), an affiliated entity. 
 
At June 30, 2010, pledges receivable from East Lake Foundation relate to a $400,000 technology 
grant made from the Foundation to the School during 2010. The Foundation funds portions of the 
pledge upon receiving requests for qualifying expenditures from the School. The remaining 
balance due from the East Lake Foundation to the School at June 30, 2011 was $18,819. 
 
Amounts due to the Foundation from the School totaled approximately $118,000 and $112,000 
as of June 30, 2011 and 2010. The amounts resulted from expenses paid for by the Foundation 
on behalf of the School. 
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NOTE G—RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
The School participates in the Teachers Retirement System of Georgia. Participation is available 
to all full-time public school employees as defined by the Plan. Participant employees contribute 
5% of their annual salary. The School contributed 9.28% of each participant’s annual salary for 
the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. Employer contributions totaled approximately $555,000 
and $515,000 for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
 
 
NOTE H—WITHDRAWAL FROM SOCIAL SECURITY SYSTEM 
 
During fiscal year 2010, the School determined that the teachers who participate in the Teacher’s 
Retirement System of Georgia are exempt from the Social Security portion of FICA tax. 
Effective October 2009, the School decided to withdraw from participating in the Social Security 
system for such teachers. The School also submitted amended Form 941s for calendar year 2006 
through 2009 to obtain a refund of previous amounts paid into the Social Security system by the 
School and by the teachers. During 2011, the School received the refunds for 2006, 2008 and 
2009 which amounted to approximately $1,968,000. Of this amount approximately $945,000 
was paid to the teachers from which it was withheld. The 2007 amount of $591,935 was still 
receivable as of June 30, 2011. The employer portion of the refunds in the amount of $1,243,190 
was recorded as Refunds from the Internal Revenue Service in the statement of activities during 
2011. Related interest income on the employer portion of $95,330 is also included in Refunds 
from the Internal Revenue Service on the statement of activities. The 2007 employee portion of 
$295,967 is included in accrued expenses on the statement of position at June 30, 2011 and will 
be paid to employees when the 2007 refund is received. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
ON SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

 
To the Board of Directors 
Drew Charter School, Inc. 
 
We have audited the financial statements of Drew Charter School, Inc., as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2011 and our report thereon dated September 26, 2011, which expressed an 
unqualified opinion on those financial statements appears on page 1. Our audit was conducted 
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The 
supplemental fund level balance sheet, statement of activities and selected notes are presented in 
accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Ruling #34 as required by The 
Atlanta Public Schools and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information 
is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

 
GIFFORD, HILLEGASS & INGWERSEN, LLP 

 
 

September 26, 2011 
Atlanta, Georgia 
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 
 

FUND LEVEL BALANCE SHEET 
 

June 30, 2011 
 
 

See accountants’ report of supplementary information. 
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Cash 4,429,291$    
Other receivable 591,934         

TOTAL  ASSETS 5,021,225$    

Liabilities
Due to related party 118,404$       
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,228,085      

TOTAL  LIABILITIES 1,346,489      

Fund Balance
Unrestricted 3,569,859      
Restricted for future use 104,877         

TOTAL FUND BALANCE 3,674,736      

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 5,021,225$    

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

ASSETS
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC. 
 

FUND LEVEL STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011 
 

 

See accountants’ report of supplementary information. 
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Revenues
Federal Funding

Title I Funding (CFDA 84.010) 526,888$       
State Funding

Facilities Grant 62,000           
Bright from the Start 177,468         

Other Local Funding – operations
Contributions 882,450         
Other Revenue 6,040             
Refunds from the Internal Revenue Service 1,338,520      

TOTAL REVENUES 2,993,366      

Expenditures
Instruction 6,189,390      
General Administration 2,048,676      
Support Services – Business and Technology 443,501         
Maintenance and Operation of Plant Services 638,434         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 9,320,001      

EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER REVENUES (6,326,635)     

Other Financing Sources
Transfers from APS District 8,142,805      

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 8,142,805      

Net Change in Fund Balance 1,816,170      

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 1,858,566      

Fund Balance at End of Year 3,674,736$    
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June 30, 2011 
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NOTE A—CAPITAL ASSETS

Each class of capital assets is as follows for the year ended June 30, 2011:

Computer equipment: Cost Depreciation
Beginning of year balance 502,608$       141,133$       

Acquisitions -                     
Dispositions (322)               (321)               
Depreciation expense 146,580         

End of year balance 502,286$       287,392$       

Furniture and fixtures: Cost Depreciation
Beginning of year balance 213,617$       196,439$       

Acquisitions -                     
Dispositions (3,158)            (3,159)            
Depreciation expense 4,645             

End of year balance 210,459$       197,925$       

Curriculum: Cost Depreciation
Beginning of year balance 460,092$       450,507$       

Acquisitions -                     
Dispositions -                     -                     
Depreciation expense 9,585             

End of year balance 460,092$       460,092$       

Building improvements: Cost Depreciation
Beginning of year balance 22,148$         4,118$           

Acquisitions -                     
Dispositions -                     -                     
Depreciation expense 3,029             

End of year balance 22,148$         7,147$           

Land improvements: Cost Depreciation
Beginning of year balance 41,294$         3,933$           

Acquisitions -                     
Dispositions -                     -                     
Depreciation expense 5,899             

End of year balance 41,294$         9,832$           
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL PARTNERS FOR EXPANSION 

RACE TO THE TOP INNOVATION FUND 

- DREW CHARTER SCHOOL: 10-YEAR ENROLLMENT PLAN – 

APPENDIX 1 

 

 

Drew Charter School Projected Enrollment, Years 2011-2012 through 2023-2024 

 

  
School 

Year 

Early 

Learning* 

P-

K 
K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 Total 

Current 2011-2012 234 66 80 84 84 88 88 88 96 96 96         1100 

Transition 2012-2013 234 88 110 110 110 110 88 88 96 96 96         1226 

Y1 2013-2014 234 88 132 132 132 132 125 125 100 100 100 100       1500 

Y2 2014-2015 234 88 132 132 132 132 132 125 125 100 100 100 100     1632 

Y3 2015-2016 234 88 132 132 132 132 132 132 125 125 100 100 100 100   1764 

Y4 2016-2017 234 88 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 125 125 100 100 100 100 1896 

Y5 2017-2018 234 88 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 125 125 100 100 100 1928 

Y6 2018-2019 234 88 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 125 125 100 100 1960 

Y7 2019-2020 234 88 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 150 125 125 100 2010 

Y8 2020-2021 234 88 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 150 150 125 125 2060 

Y9 2021-2022 234 88 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 150 150 150 125 2085 

Y10 2022-2023 234 88 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 132 150 150 150 150 2110 

*Drew has two early learning partners that feed into the cradle-to-college pipeline. (1) Sheltering Arms Early Learning and Family 

Center, serving 135 children from birth to age four and (2) East Lake Early Learning Academy at the East Lake YMCA, serving 99 

children from birth to age three. 
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL PARTNERS FOR EXPANSION 

RACE TO THE TOP INNOVATION FUND 

- PARTNER MISSION AND EXPERTISE – 

APPENDIX 2 

 

 Center for Education Integrating Science, Mathematics, and Computing (CEISMC) 

Mission:  The Center for Education Integrating Science, Mathematics, and Computing (CEISMC) 

(pronounced like "seismic") is a partnership uniting the Georgia Institute of Technology with educational 

groups, schools, corporations, and opinion leaders throughout the state of Georgia.  CEISMC is dedicated 

to the enhancement of STEM education in the schools based on the enormous scholarly accomplishments 

of GT faculty.  CEISMC advocates and participates in efforts for systemic changes that lead to improved 

appreciation and performance in STEM for all students at the level of K-12, especially those under-

represented in STEM education, and to disseminate best practices to districts and through scholarly 

works. 

 

Expertise and Experience:  Georgia Tech (GT), led by its outreach center, the Center for Education 

Integrating Science, Mathematics and Computing (CEISMC), is playing a major partnership role in 

Georgia’s Race to the Top (RT3) STEM initiative.  To achieve STEM educational reform across the state 

requires effective teacher professional development (PD), engaging and rigorous STEM courses, and 

special attention to advanced STEM courses.  The keys to our approach are distance learning, STEM 

content and research expertise of GT, and the already established successful programs of CEISMC and 

GT’s Distance Learning and Professional Education (DLPE) office.  

CEISMC’s Race to the Top initiative is divided into two components:  teacher professional development 

and advanced courses for students.    

 

Teacher Professional Development 

Online Courses: CEISMC and DLPE provides long-term online teacher PD for NASA through the NASA 

Electronic Professional Development Network (ePDN) located at Georgia Tech.  In addition to providing 

ePDN courses in robotics, problem-based inquiry science, and statistics, CEISMC will develop courses 

using GaDOE’s Learning Management System.  These courses will use GA Tech’s innovative STEM 

research as the framework for content emphasis. 

Instructional Technology Toolkit: In collaboration with GaDOE’s Division of Instructional Technology, 

CEISMC will develop a Toolkit for administrators and teachers to support the effective use of technology 

in a standards-based classroom with emphasis on real-world applications.   
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GIFT: The Georgia Intern-Fellowships for Teachers (GIFT) program will increase to 105 annually STEM 

teachers per summer in mentored, challenging STEM internships in industry and university research 

laboratories.  

 

Advanced Courses for Students 

Online Advanced Courses:  In collaboration with Georgia Virtual School, online advanced STEM courses 

for students will be developed.  CEISMC will also develop a new online operations research (OR)-based 

Math4 course 

Distance Calculus:   CEISMC, the School of Mathematics, and DLPE have pioneered the use of live 

video conferencing to offer college-level calculus II and III to advanced high school students.  The RT3 

initiative will expand the reach of various programs by 150 students (to 400/year), add additional school 

systems, courses, and individual students in rural counties. 

Robotics/Engineering Design: Building on NSF funding of a program that utilizes robotics and 

engineering design to teach physical science and that inspires students from all demographic groups to 

continue to actively engage in STEM education, Georgia Tech will expand the use of engineering and 

robotics in middle schools, specifically within integrated STEM classrooms.   

 

Effect of the Project on Students and Teachers 

Georgia Tech’s Race to the Top teacher professional development collaborations with GaDOE will 

impact over a 1000 middle and high school mathematics, science and CTAE teachers over the 4-year 

grant period.  Teacher PD through the GIFT program adds 100 additional teachers. Implementing 

innovative robots/pre-engineering programs will reach about 10,800 middle school students. The Math4-

OR course will involve approximately 3000 students per year, and the distance calculus and other 

advanced classes will add at least 600 students. Total:  At least 20,400 students, 1100 teachers.  

 

 Georgia State University School of Music 

Mission:  The mission of the School of Music is to provide a comprehensive, rigorous, and innovative 

academic program that is consistent with the urban context and mission of Georgia State University, and 

that serves the pursuit of artistic, professional, and scholarly excellence through experiences of lasting 

value to all stakeholders. 

 

Expertise and Experience:  The Center for Educational Partnerships within the GSU School of Music 

partners with local K-12 schools to implement the nationally recognized arts integration program, Sound 

Learning (SL), which was established in 1999.  Sound Learning is cited in the current Harvard Project 
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Zero report: Qualities of Quality: Understanding Excellence in Arts Education.  Project Zero’s mission is 

to understand and enhance thinking and creativity in the arts, as well as humanistic and science 

disciplines at the individual and institutional levels.  Current Sound Learning programs are produced at 

Centennial Elementary School and Charles R. Drew Charter School.  At the latter school, SL serves 

grades one through five (approximately 400 students) with music residencies that connect with specific 

academic subjects selected by the teachers of each grade.  Lesson content and learning goals are designed 

by Drew teachers and site coordinators.  Past programs have emphasized language arts, sounds 

acoustics/music instrument construction, geography, and other subject matter.  The site coordinators 

selected by the Director of the CEP, are current or former Ph.D. candidates (5) in music education.  A 

second aspect of Sound Learning is an ongoing, arts-focused curriculum integration project called Inspire, 

which is directed to grades six through eight at Drew Charter School. 

 

 Center for Teaching at the Westminster Schools 

Mission:  The mission of the Center for Teaching is to advance educators and the teaching profession in 

quality and professional stature through programs and resources which promote expertise in both the 

science and art of education. The Center utilizes the resources and best practices of professional 

excellence on a national level and promotes collaboration and partnership between public and 

independent schools. Through development and practical application of the teaching craft, the Center 

aims to enhance the overall quality of excellence in schools. 

 

Expertise and Experience:  The CFT has had five years of experience designing and implementing 

professional development (PD) programs for faculty.  We have facilitated four faculty cohorts involving a 

total of 42 teachers at The Westminster Schools and Drew Charter School.  We have facilitated another 

three faculty cohorts involving a total of 40 teachers from Atlanta Public Schools and six Atlanta 

independent schools.  All seven cohorts worked for a full year providing teachers with professional 

development opportunities that were sustained, focused on their classroom instruction, and directed at 

deepening teachers’ content knowledge and instructional practice.  One of the goals of the cohort program 

is to help faculty members develop the skills needed to be a “teacher leader” in his or her school.  In our 

first cohort, two math teachers, one from Drew Charter School and one from The Westminster Schools, 

continued a collaborative relationship that centered on integrating technology in their math classes.  Their 

collaboration continues to this day.  Within a year, the Drew math teacher became the Math Coordinator, 

and The Westminster Schools’ math teacher started co-facilitating a professional learning community in 

the Junior High School and led a faculty cohort in 2010-2011.  The CFT has designed and implemented 

other programs in collaboration with Drew’s Math Coordinator: a math-tutoring program for struggling 
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and gifted 6-8
th
 grade students.  Over the past two years, the program has supported 28 students.  The 

CFT has also collaborated with Drew’s Math Coordinator and the Director of Teaching and Learning to 

implement PD programs in Singapore Math strategies.  We have helped to educate nearly 28 Drew 

Charter K-6 grade teachers in Singapore Math, a strategy used to improve instruction and student 

achievement in math.  We have collaborated with the Westminster math teacher to implement more 

effective assessment strategies as part of the curriculum for her JHS math PLC.  These examples illustrate 

how the cohort model we have developed has led to participants becoming teacher leaders and sustaining 

their commitment to improving their practice and impacting student achievement. 

 

 New Tech Network 

Mission: New Tech Network is a non-profit organization that helps high school students gain the 

knowledge and skills they need to succeed in life, college, and the careers of tomorrow. We work 

nationwide with schools, districts, and communities to provide services and support that enable schools to 

implement innovative high schools that promote deeper learning.  

 

Expertise and Experience: We began in the mid-90s in Napa, California. The local schools were 

meeting education standards, and the community thought of Napa High School as a good school. 

However, local business leaders remained concerned that meeting basic standards would not be enough to 

ensure that students were graduating with the skills needed to meet the needs of the new economy. These 

business and community leaders decided to make a difference. Working with the local school district, 

they began researching innovations in education to re-imagine what a truly great school might be like. In 

1996, the Napa Valley Unified School District established Napa New Technology High School with the 

first class of 100 students. As Napa New Technology High School thrived, local business leaders and 

education advocates came together to ensure the school’s long-term success and sustainability by 

establishing the New Tech Foundation. In 2001, New Tech was awarded a $6 million grant from the Bill 

and Melinda Gates Foundation. With this funding, New Tech was charged with launching 14 schools over 

three years. From this initial launch, New Tech has continued to grow. In the 2006-07 school year, New 

Tech opened 23 new sites with clusters in Los Angeles, North Carolina, Texas, and Indiana, supported by 

an online learning system, Echo. In 2009, New Tech became a subsidiary of KnowledgeWorks, allowing 

New Tech to further expand its reach. In 2011, New Tech had its greatest growth ever, opening 31 new 

schools.   

Today, our name is New Tech Network and we support 86 public schools in 16 states. We have 

schools in rural, urban and suburban districts that serve diverse communities. We work with districts to 

expand our work through K-12  
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Project-based learning (PBL) is at the heart of our instructional approach. In PBL, learning is 

contextual, creative, and shared. Students collaborate on projects that require critical thinking and 

presentation skills. By making learning relevant in this way, student engagement reaches new levels and 

produces better educational outcomes. The deep use of technology supports our innovative approach to 

instruction and culture. All classrooms have a one-to-one computing ratio. Every student becomes a self-

directed learner who no longer needs to rely primarily on teachers or textbooks for knowledge and 

direction.  

We have developed a robust learning management system, NTN Echo. Echo facilitates a vibrant 

network which helps students, teachers, administration and parents connect. This system houses extensive 

project and resource libraries shared among all schools in the network. Finally, each New Tech school 

maintains a culture that promotes trust, respect, and responsibility. At our schools, students and teachers 

alike have exceptional ownership of the learning experience and their school environment. Working on 

projects and in teams, students are accountable to their peers and acquire a level of responsibility similar 

to what they would experience in a professional work environment. With project-based learning, the 

seamless use of technology, and a distinct school culture, we prepare our students with the skills needed 

to be successful in today’s world beyond high school. Our approach is working. In 2009-10, New Tech 

Network 
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2012 test scores confirm…. 
Drew students consistently 
achieve remarkable results 

Drew Charter School and its 
students are celebrating another 
successful year! 
• In 2011-12, Drew received a $1 million Race 

to the Top grant 

• Drew was selected as both a Reflex Math 
Model School and a SMART  Technologies 
Demonstration site and case study 

• 95% of 5th graders met/exceeded the Georgia 
Writing Assessment; 20% exceeded 

• 15 8th graders passed the Math I End-of-
Course-Tests (EOCT), a 100% pass rate 

• Principal Don Doran is one of only 15 school 
leaders nationwide selected to serve on the 
Gates Foundation Advisory Board 

• Two robotics teams qualified for state 
competition 

• Drew won 1st place in city-wide spelling bee 

 

The percentage of 
Drew students 

(grades 3-8) who 
met or exceeded 

state standards in 
2012 testing: 

99%    Reading 

99%    Language Arts 

95%    Math 

95%    Science 

96%    Social Studies 

Grade Reading Language Arts Math Science Social Studies 

3 100% 100% 97.5% 97.5% 98.7% 

4 98.9% 100% 94.8% 97.9% 96.9% 

5 98.7% 98.7% 97.5% 92.1% 96.1% 

6 97.9% 100% 98.9% 91.8% 95.9% 

7 100% 98.9% 100% 97.8% 95.6% 

8 100% 98.9% 97.8% 91.1% 92.2% 

2012 CRCT Scores 
% of Drew Charter Students Who Meet or Exceed State Standards 

1 of 2 Updated June 29, 2012 

All Georgia students, grades 3-8, take the 
Georgia Criterion Reference Competency 
Test (CRCT).  
 
The latest scores* reflect Drew students’ 
impressive accomplishments and 
demonstrate their growing knowledge, 
proficiency and achievement. 
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2012 test scores confirm… 
Drew students consistently achieve 
remarkable results 

40% 

68% 

81% 84% 
92% 

2008 in
grade 4

2009 in
grade 5

2010 in
grade 6

2011 in
grade 7

2012 in
grade 8

Students perform better  
the longer they stay at Drew 

 
Consider the performance of the  

2012 Drew 8th grade class over time 
% who meet or exceed social studies standards 

91% 

92% 

98% 

99% 

100% 

74% 

77% 

77% 

95% 

96% 

Science

Social Studies

Math

Language Arts

Reading

State of GA Drew

Drew students outperform their peers 
across Georgia 

 
Consider the  % of Drew 8th graders  

who meet/exceed standards 

 

51% 54% 
38% 37% 

20% 
29% 59% 61% 

Meets Exceeds

Not just meeting, but exceeding 
state standards 

 
Consider the % of Drew 3rd graders  

who exceed standards on Math CRCT 

301 East Lake Blvd 
Atlanta, GA 30316 
404.687.0001 
drewcharterschool.org 

2 of 2 

2011-2012 
Partnerships for  

Professional Development 
 

• Center for Teaching, Westminster Schools 
– teaching and learning 

• Georgia State University School of Music – 
arts education 

• Georgia Tech Center for Education, 
Integrating Science, Mathematics, and 
Computing (CEISMC) – STEM education 

• Rollins Center for Language and Learning, 
Atlanta Speech School – language and 
literacy 
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Making the Case:  
A New High School in East Lake

In the Secondary Education Project, a white paper 
outlining the case for a new Drew Charter Senior 
Academy, the authors state: “Drew Charter School, CF 
Foundation, Inc. and East Lake Foundation have become 
increasingly concerned regarding the outcomes for our 
students after they transition from Drew in 8th grade to 
high schools in the Atlanta area.” They write, “we have 
not been satisfied that Drew students are experiencing a 
seamless transition moving from Drew 8th grade to high 
school.” With insufficient support systems necessary to 
help low-income students be successful in high school, 
college and life, as well as an inadequate preparation 
from traditional schooling, the Drew Charter Senior 
Academy Research Team believes a successful strategy 
would be to develop a neighborhood high school for 
Drew Charter students focused on teaching Common 
Core standards in an interdisciplinary fashion using 
Project-Based Learning (PBL).

This ‘white paper’ will: (1) explain the PBL process; (2) 
explore the research that supports PBL as a successful 

instructional strategy; (3) share stories of some successful 
PBL schools; and (4) and look at PBL within the context 
of a Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts, and Math 
(STEAM) school.

In reflecting on student characteristics outlined by 
the High School Management Team including self-
confidence, critical thinking skills and a global perspective, 
PBL offers an academic model that is aligned with 
desired student outcomes. In PBL schools, students are 
encouraged to reflect on their understanding of ideas, 
make decisions along the learning journey, develop 
their voice through the process, and make choices that 
affect their project’s outcome. In PBL students make 
connections between different areas of study and 
collaborate with peers to construct knowledge and share 
their outcomes. In PBL, students work on relevant and 
meaningful problems. 

We believe that PBL is an effective instructional 
strategy for building the essential skills necessary for 
success in the 21st century.

Contents Making the Case .................. 1

Current Educational  
Outcomes ............................. 2

Overview of PBL ................... 3

Research  
Supporting PBL...................... 4

Successful PBL  
Schools ................................. 5

PBL Alignment  
with STEM ............................ 6

Conclusion and  
References ............................ 7
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Project-Based 
Learning:  
A White Paper

Drew Charter
Senior Academy

APPENDIX 4 - PBL WHITE PAPER
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Current Educational Outcomes
Looking at the Secondary Education Project, it was noted 

that the authors were “only able to document that 74% of 
Drew students graduated high school on time and 56% of 
Drew students went on to pursue postsecondary education” 
(graph below). The CF Foundation, East Lake Foundation 
and Drew Charter School, in partnership with many others, 
are invested in ensuring that 100% of 8th graders at Drew 
Charter School complete the cradle-to-college pipeline. 
Based on research outlined in the Secondary Education 
Project white paper, it would appear that relying on 
traditional schools to meet the needs of all Drew 8th-grade 
students falls short of our goal.

Beyond Atlanta, the Atlanta Journal Constitution reported 
in September 2010, that “Georgia’s average SAT scores 
continue to drop despite sweeping state changes in core 
curriculum designed to expose more students to rigorous 
work.” With a State average 2010 SAT score of 1453, students 
are not being prepared to meet the minimum requirements 
needed to attend the state’s flagship public institution, the 
University of Georgia (see box to the right).

Incoming freshman to UGA in the 25th percentile had an 
average SAT score of 1690, while those in the 75th percentile 
had an average SAT score of 1980.

2010 Ave SAT Scores
Incoming freshman to UGA in

25th Percentile:

1690
Incoming freshman to UGA in

75th Percentile:

1980

Based on the long-term educational attainment of Drew 
students discussed in the white paper, combined with the 
broader challenges in traditional Georgia and Atlanta-area 
public schools, the Research team believes that there is a 
need to look beyond the traditional approaches currently 
being taken and employ strategies that will more effectively 
engage students in the learning process while fulfilling 
responsibilities to No Child Left Behind. We believe the 
best strategy for success is to design Drew Charter Senior 
Academy with a focus on teaching Common Core standards 
in an interdisciplinary fashion using PBL as the foundation.

:: 2 ::

Post Secondary Enrollment
{Drew 8th Grade Class of 2006}

Enrolled in Post-
Secondary

Employed

Eligible, but  
Did Not Enroll

Not Eligible to 
Enroll (no HS 
degree/GED)

Unkown/
Untrackable

56%

2%

13%

20%

8%

2010 Graduation Rates
{8th Grade Class of 2006}

State of Georgia

Atlanta Public 
Schools

Drew Charter 
School

81%
66%

74%

On-Time Graduation Rate

School # tested
Avg
Read

Avg
Math

Avg
Writing

Total
SAT

Grady HS 224 511 475 496 1482

Carver 
Early
College HS

45 440 437 443 1320

North
Atlanta HS

150 485 477 480 1442

Atlanta
Public
Schools

1157 417 409 412 1239

State of 
GA

66019 488 490 475 1453
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Overview of  
Project-Based Learning

Project-Based Learning has become increasingly visible in the education 
community in the past five years. The Buck Institute, an organization devoted 
to Project-Based Learning professional development, has been working 
on promoting PBL for the past 15 years. Currently, they operate about 100 
PBL workshops around the country to nearly 4,000 educators. In addition, 
Edutopia, a professional development website for teachers sponsored by the 
George Lucas Foundation, has adopted PBL as one of its core strategies for 
innovation and reform in education. The reason there is so much attention 
being given to PBL is because educators are looking for ways to make the 
classroom experience more relevant to students’ lives and the assessments tied 
to learning more authentic.

Project-Based Learning is a teaching strategy that uses real-world learning 
activities to engage student interest and motivation. In PBL, students collaborate, 
problem-solve, make decisions along their journey, create something new, and 
present their work. Projects are designed to address essential questions or 
problems that represent experiences people encounter in the world outside a 
traditional classroom. Teachers are the facilitators of learning, guiding students 
through a structured project plan, incorporating multiple learning methods. 
PBL is more student-centered, versus the traditional model with the teacher at 
the front and center of learning.

One of the goals of PBL is to engage students’ deeper learning, asking them 
to grapple with concepts from many different perspectives. PBL is an effective 
vehicle to teach students 21st Century skills, like communication, collaboration, 
organization, time management, research, self-assessment, and reflection skills. 
The cycle of inquiry in is a schematic for how to conceptualize PBL (figure below).

:: 3 ::

Buck Institute  
Definition of PBL:
…Students going through an 
extended process of inquiry in 
response to a complex question, 
problem, or challenge. While 
allowing for some degree of student 
“voice and choice,” rigorous projects 
are carefully planned, managed, 
and assessed to help students learn 
key academic content, practice 21st 
Century Skills (such as collaboration, 
communication & critical thinking), 
and create high-quality, authentic 
products & presentations.

The Partnership for 21st 
Century Skills advocates that 
schools provide tools and resources 
to help students prepare for college 
and life by fusing 3Rs (Reading, 
Writing, and Arithmetic) with 
the 4Cs (Critical thinking and 
problem solving, Communication, 
Collaboration, and Creativity and 
innovation)

Inquiry, Learn, and Create 
Something NEW

Feedback  
& Revision

Public Presentation 
or Performance

Question or 
Challenge

Student Voice 
& Choice

Critical Thinking,  
Problem-Solving 

Collaboration

Interdisciplinary
Content/Skills
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Research Supporting PBL
Project-Based Learning has been 

utilized for over 40 years in a variety 
of different disciplines. The Next 
Generation: Cells to Society Curriculum 
at the University of Virginia School of 
Medicine is a PBL approach that educates 
medical students using a blend of active, 
experiential learning activities. A number 
of comprehensive summaries of other 
research studies were conducted that 
provided a synthesis of the effects of 
PBL in comparison to traditional forms 
of instruction. A study by Johannes 
Strobel and Angela van Barneveld used 
a qualitative meta-analysis approach 
to compare and contrast assumptions 
and findings of the research on the 
effectiveness of PBL. Findings indicated 
that PBL was superior to traditional 
teaching approaches when it comes to 
long-term retention, skill development 
and satisfaction of students and teachers, 
while traditional approaches were more 
effective for short-term retention as 
measured by standardized board exams.

Stobel and Barneveld 
found PBL was superior 
to traditional teaching 
in long-term retention, 
skill development and 
satisfaction of students 
and teachers.

In a 3-year study of two schools in 
England that employed two different 
approaches to mathematics education, 
Dr. Jo Boaler, from Stanford University, 
noted that students from a PBL school 
performed better on achievement tests 
than students from a traditional, teacher-
centered setting. One of the schools in her 
study used a more open-ended approach 
while the other used a more procedural, 
skills-based approach to mathematics 
teaching. In the study, students were 
matched by gender, race, and social 

class. In the 3-year study, the students 
at the PBL school attained significantly 
higher grades on a range of assessments, 
including the national examination. They 
outperformed students at the more 
traditional school despite the extra time 
spent on mathematics instruction at the 
more traditional school. The 3-year study 
concluded that the PBL school not only 
achieved significant academic results 
for its students despite the fact that the 
school was located in the poorest area 
of the country, but also reduced the 
inequities that typically correlate with 
gender and social class. (Boaler et.al., 
2002)

Boaler, from Stanford 
University, noted that 
students from a PBL 
school performed better 
on achievement tests 
than students from a 
traditional setting.

A study conducted by Jason Ravitz 
in 2010, Beyond Changing Culture in 
Small High Schools: Reform Models 
and Changing Instruction with Project-
Based Learning, concluded that reform 
model start-up schools that adopted 
an innovative approach like Project-
Based Learning were more successful in 
changing the faculty and student culture, 
engaging in inquiry-related practices, 
and successfully implementing PBL than 
large comprehensive traditional schools 
or smaller schools not affiliated with any 
specific teaching practice.

Finally, Robert Grier and colleagues 
examined the effects of a reform initiative 
with multiple strategies, including 
PBL, that focused on supporting 
standards-based science teaching in 
urban middle schools. Their effort was 
one part of a comprehensive reform 

initiative in the Detroit Public Schools, 
and was centered on highly specified 
and developed project-based inquiry 
science units supported by targeted 
faculty professional development and 
integration of technology. Two groups 
of 7th and 8th graders participating in 
the project units were compared with 
the remainder of the district population, 
using results from the high-stakes state 
standardized test in science. Both PBL 
groups showed increases in science 
content understanding and process 
skills over the control groups who used 
traditional curriculum and teaching 
methods, and significantly higher pass 
rates on the statewide test. The relative 
gains occur up to a year and a half after 
participation in the curriculum, and show 
little change within the second cohort 
when scaling occurred and the number 
of teachers involved increased. When 
the investigators looked at the results by 
gender they revealed that the curriculum 
effort succeeded in reducing the gender 
gap in achievement experienced by 
urban African-American boys.

Grier found increases 
in science content 
understanding and 
process skills for PBL 
groups over control 
groups who used 
traditional curriculum and 
teaching methods, and 
significantly higher pass 
rates on statewide tests.

Data presented in the four studies 
summarized above provide sufficient 
evidence that students achieve high 
results on standardized tests and sustain a 
deeper understanding of content over the 
long-term using a PBL academic design.

:: 4 ::
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Successful PBL Schools
There are many examples of schools that are shifting their 

focus and becoming Project-Based Learning schools. The Gary 
and Jerri-Ann Jacobs High Tech High School in San Diego is 
one of a group of 11 K-12 schools that have designed their 
curriculum around a PBL approach (see insert below)

At High Tech High, students and teachers work in 
interdisciplinary, collaborative environments as they 
implement projects that have relevance and meaning to 
the students. Interdisciplinary teams design these projects; 
giving students the experience that one discipline supports 
the other. Students learn to connect writing with math, 
history with science, art with English, and so on. Knowledge 
students have gained in a discipline supports and clarifies the 
knowledge they are developing in another discipline. 

High Tech High is a top-ranked high school in the State of 
California. In addition, average combined SAT scores of High 
Tech High 12th-grade students are about 150 points higher 
than students throughout San Diego Unified School District 
and nearly 100 points higher as compared to statewide scores 

(shown above). Although we acknowledge that the High 
Tech High score is lower than the reported UGA admissions 
score, the school is outperforming the district and state by 
a significant margin, and the percentage of students taking 
SATs at High Tech High is nearly three times the number in 
the state.

In the New Tech Network, “a nonprofit organization that 
helps students gain the knowledge and skills they need to 
succeed in life, college, and the careers of tomorrow,” nearly 
87 public schools in 16 states are engaging their students 
in Project-Based Learning. The New Tech Foundation is 
associated with Knowledge Works, and partially funded 
by the Bill and Melinda Gates Foundation. Project-Based 
Learning is at the heart of their instructional approach 
because the learning is contextual, creative, and shared. 
Students collaborate on projects because it requires them 
to develop critical thinking and communication skills. By 
making learning relevant to students, they see higher levels 
of engagement, which is associated with better educational 
outcomes as evidenced by the data (insert below).
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School % tested
Avg
Read

Avg
Math

Avg
Writing

Total
SAT

High Tech
High

89.9 538 549 525 1612

San Diego
Unified

43.9 488 499 478 1465

State of 
CA

33.4 501 520 500 1521

High Tech High’s  

Project-Based Learning 
approach involves the  
following design principles:

 > Personalization

 > Adult/World Connection

 > Common Intellectual 
    Mission

New Tech Network:

98% of students graduate

95% of students enroll in postsecondary education; 

versus an average of less than 40% postsecondary 

education at other Napa Valley high schools.

Outperforms Napa Valley public schools by 94 points 

on SAT combined score.
4

4

4
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PBL alignment with STEM
In a report published by Learning.com, the organization 

points out that current research demonstrates that Project-
Based Learning can increase students interest in STEM 
related fields because students are asked to solve “real-
world problems” in teams and build solutions or artifacts 
of their work. They point out that the research supports the 
fact that students effectively learn when they are expected 
to construct their own knowledge of the world.

For Project-Based Learning to work effectively in 
schools to support a STEM philosophy, teachers need to 
be effectively trained in the techniques and supported to 
develop integrated curriculum.

“The project approach to STEM, or ‘learning by doing,’ 
is grounded in the constructivist theory that to improve 
student achievement in higher-order cognitive skills such as 
scientific processes and mathematical problem-solving.” In 
traditional approaches to classroom instruction in science 
and math, students are presented with problems that 
have known answers and generally one solution. The goal 
of the teacher is to help the students learn how to solve 
for the right answer. In contrast to traditional approaches, 
PBL presents students with real-world problems that are 
complex and do not have a single right answer. Students 
are asked to collaborate with others inside and outside of 
the school, apply their knowledge in a variety of disciplines, 
integrate their knowledge across disciplines, and construct 
the knowledge that leads to a real-world outcome. In this 
way they retain the knowledge and skills they learn and use 
in deeper and more sustaining ways.

After compiling research on PBL from a variety of sources, 
Learning.com propose the following cycle of learning for PBL 
in STEM fields.

Learning.com sees the following advantages in 
implementing PBL in STEM schools:

> Improved math and science test scores when 
students are engaged in Project Based Learning 
methods of instruction.

> Applicable transfer of knowledge and skills to 
real world problems and better retention of the 
knowledge and skills.

> Increased interest and motivation for learning 
when students are engaged in meaningful work 
relevant to their lives.

:: 6 ::

REFLECTION

RESEARCH

DISCOVERY

COMMUNICATION

APPLICATION

What is a STEM School?
 > Science, Technology, Engineering 

and Math

 > Schools that help students acquire 
skills to solve challenging problems 
in today’s world

 > Schools that teach students how 
to think critically, solve complex 
problems, and drive advancements 
in science, technology, engineering 
and math.
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Conclusion
Our research confirms that the current high school 

system is not working for children in Georgia, Atlanta and 
Drew Charter School. As we embark on developing an 
innovative academic design for the Drew Charter Senior 
Academy, we are driven to create a program that will 
effectively prepare Drew students for success in higher 
education and the 21st century workplace. Project-Based 
Learning instruction, with an integrated curriculum 
design, is the most effective way to deliver a meaningful 
education for our students and to seal the cradle-to-

college pipeline for the children and families in East Lake.

Project-Based Learning is aligned with and supports an 
academic program design focused on STEAM (STEM with 
an A for Arts) education. Both PBL and STEAM integrate 
disciplines, emphasize collaboration and incorporate 
problem solving. We are confident that designing Drew 
Charter Senior Academy as a project-based, student-
centered model instead of a teacher-centered model will 
prepare our children for a life of creativity and innovation.

:: 7 ::
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Drew Charter School’s Mission
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Drew Charter School 
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To work together as a community of 
teachers, staff, students, families and 

volunteers to provide a learning environment 
that emphasizes high achievement and 

character development.
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL PARTNERS FOR EXPANSION 

RACE TO THE TOP INNOVATION FUND 

- SCOPE OF WORK NARRATIVE – 

APPENDIX 5 

 

GOAL 1: Engage in a year of comprehensive planning with DCSPE partners to (a) launch a 

national search for a principal and recruit a talented teaching staff to successfully implement 

STEAM education and PBL teaching strategies; and (b) develop nationally competitive curriculum 

to support the expansion of Drew into grades 9-12 through a focus on STEAM coursework 

underpinned by PBL teaching strategies. 

Activity #1: Drew Charter School will launch a national principal and teacher/leadership search to 

recruit and hire exceptional individuals for the expansion plan who (1) bring experience and a 

demonstrated record of success using PBL teaching strategies and (2) who have content mastery in 

STEAM fields at the high school level.   

 Drew Charter School will lead a comprehensive leadership search, accessing resources provided 

by NTN, to recruit and hire and train the principal, key leadership and teaching staff. DCSPE will 

construct a protocol for hiring new teachers and staff to begin the 2013-2014 academic year.  The CFT 

will organize and facilitate a process and series of meetings with Drew Charter School leadership to 

create job descriptions, interview protocols, non-teaching responsibilities for faculty, and a supervision 

and evaluation model for Drew Charter high school.  The timeline for this work will begin in August of 

2013 and conclude with the documentation and protocols needed to hire the best "founding" faculty from 

around the United States.  CFT and NTN will continue to refine the protocol in partnership with Drew 

Charter for subsequent hiring years to ensure that talented teachers and leaders are selected for the high 

school team. 

Activity #2: Build talented leadership team to ensure student achievement in 2013-2014. Drew has 

planned a robust training program with DCSPE partners to on-board key leadership over year one of the 

grant. The principal will participate in a 4-day Principal Residency training program in February 2013 

with other NTN principals dedicated to developing and deepening leadership skills for PBL schools.  

Following the residency, the principal and staff will participate in a two-day shadowing program at a 

NTN Demonstrate Site designed to provide examples of best practices for teaching and leading across all 

grades and develop a professional learning community for teachers and staff.  Prior to the opening of the 

high school, all teachers and leaders will participate in a five-day New School Training program onsite to 

finalize all plans for the first year 
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Activity #3: Early hires and pre-work for key teachers and leaders.  Drew Charter School will work to 

hire key teachers and leaders in the first quarter of 2013, with the Principal hired by January 2013.  The 

principal is the key instructional leader of the high school academic program, athletic and extracurricular 

programs, school culture, hiring protocol and critical to recruiting families, students and teachers to the 

new high school.      

When feasible, based on work contracts, Drew Charter would like to hire teachers and leaders to 

start as soon as possible to participate in school planning.  If teachers are fully employed on a teaching 

contract, Drew will offer stipends for future staff in advance of working full-time at Drew. 

Activity #4: Center for Teaching will lead and facilitate leadership planning and professional culture 

building to support school culture with key Drew Charter leaders and teachers. Once the Drew 

principal is hired and his/her leadership team is onsite, CFT will collaborate with the Drew leadership and 

research teams as well as NTN to organize and facilitate a leadership retreat to being the process to 

review the amended charter and preliminary work on the high school, and develop a work agenda for 

work to be completed before the opening in 2013-2014.  A minimum of nine biweekly meetings will 

occur before August 2013. 

 CFT will work to support the following training and professional development activities 

supporting a successful school opening in fall 2013: The Principal will attend “Leadership Design” by 

New Tech Network in February 2013 and “Leading the 21
st
 Century High School” in July 2013. The 

Dean of Students (or similar) will participate in “Balancing Your Contrasting Roles at Dean of Students” 

through the Independent School Management in June 2013.  The Principal and other key administration 

will attend “Charter Schools: Practices for High Performance” at the Harvard Graduate School of 

Education & Principals Center in November 2012. 

 DCPSE partners will work collaboratively with Drew Charter to support professional and 

leadership development on a regular basis within the framework of the school year to ensure that lessons 

learned are applied in the school and have the desired, positive outcomes on student achievement, 

professional and school culture. 

Activity #5: The Center for Teaching will work with Drew Charter and other DCSPE partners to 

organize and facilitate a series of monthly retreats to assist the new Principal, his or her Leadership 

Team (3 individuals), the Research Team and Drew administrators to begin and complete the process for 

developing staff and student handbooks, school rules and policies, grading procedures, advisory 

curriculum, and other school programs that must be in place to begin the 2013-2014 school year.  We will 

use these monthly retreats to discuss and design a framework for mentoring programs, student 

internships, dual enrollment options, procedures for implementing standardized tests (ACT, College 

Work Readiness, and others), student extra-curricular programs (debate, robotics, and others), athletics 
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(procedures to follow through the Georgia High School Association) and other school programs that need 

to be investigated (National Honors Society and others).  The CFT will organize, facilitate, and synthesize 

the work that is produced from these regular retreats, which will begin in January 2013 and continue until 

the agenda we identify is completed.  This work may have to coordinate with the hiring of the principal 

for the new Drew high school so the anticipated date for the first retreat will be January 2013.  Monthly 

retreats mean that we will schedule 6 retreats from January through June of 2013   

Activity #6: The CFT will coordinate and facilitate the development of the PBL curriculum in Drew's 

high school in collaboration with DSCPE partners.    The CFT will host monthly retreats and summer 

"curriculum-planning institutes" when the first cohort of teachers is hired for the 9
th
 grade at Drew's high 

school.  It is critical to the success of applied learning strategies that teachers function as designers of the 

curriculum.     

Both forums will be designed with Drew Charter School to help the teachers build their PBL 

curriculum as well as work on both presentations of learning and project-tuning protocols, along with the 

process for looking at and assessing student work.   In addition, we will align projects that are developed 

to Common Core and Georgia Performance standards. CFT will hold four weekend retreats between 

March and June 2013 and two, weeklong institutes in collaboration with DCSPE partners between June 

2013 and August 2013 for the incoming team of high school faculty hired for the 2013-2014 academic 

year.   

 In the 2013-2014 school year, as we prepare to expand the teaching staff to include a new cohort 

of 10
th
 grade teachers, the CFT in collaboration with and NTN will replicate the training retreats and 

summer institutes. A major difference is that we will utilize the experienced 9
th
 grade teachers as "teacher 

leaders" in the training program for 10
th
 grade teachers to develop curriculum.   

By the end of the summer of 2014, Drew teachers and leaders will have developed model 

curriculum, merging STEAM and PBL that can be shared with other schools. 

Activity #7: Drew Charter will lead the development of an internship program for students to connect 

school-based learning with real world experiences and deepen understanding.  Drew Charter, in 

collaboration with DCSPE partners and business and foundation partners, will develop a meaningful 

internship program, targeting students’ interests and passions.  Drew will work with DCSPE partners to 

develop a model program for the student-world internship program. 

 The goals of the program will be to connect students with industry experts and develop strong 

problem solving, critical thinking, self-management and communication skills through opportunities to 

apply knowledge within a real-world setting.  The program will be developed by the end of the second 

grant year and students will participate in the internship program during the 11
th
 and 12

th
 grade years. 
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GOAL 2: Implement Drew’s high school expansion plan, completing the cradle-to-college education 

pipeline, and develop a national model, by creating a unique high school that will provide real-

world learning opportunities. 

Activity #1: Design a 21
st
 century learning commons and media center, integrated technology 

infrastructure and one-to-one computing environment to support student learning.  Drew Charter 

School will retain an education technology consultant, working with DCSPE partners, to complete a 

comprehensive analysis of technology available and craft a personalized media and technology plan for 

Drew Charter high school to support student learning and provide the greatest access to information 

through technology.  As part of the consulting agreement, Drew Charter and DSCPE partners will create a 

one-to-one device plan that will meet the needs of students, teachers and families in and out of school. 

The plan for one-to-one at the high school level will support the work of the one-to-one technology 

program in the Junior Academy, funded through the 2011 Race to the Top Innovation grant awarded to 

Drew.  Students matriculating into our high school will be proficient in the use of personal computing 

devices and the 9
th
 grade program will continue to build upon that program.  The 1:1 program allows 

Drew students to lean anytime and anywhere.  The educational structures, therefore, flip from a teacher-

centered model to a student-centered model which is aligned with the foundations of PBL and allows 

students to fully reach their potential within the STEAM educational fields.  Students will be better able 

to collaborate, communicate with teachers and peers and develop critical thinking skills to research and 

solve problems.  Further, a one-to-one environment will help teachers facilitate daily integration of 

innovative technology applications and interact with students to expand learning beyond the gapes of a 

textbook or the walls of a classroom 

Activity #2: Involve current 8
th

 grade students in high school development and implementation.  Drew 

Charter School will develop and deliver a program, in partnership with Georgia Tech CEISMC to invest 

students in their new and innovative high school program. In 2012-2013, Drew 8
th
 graders would work on 

projects and lessons with architects, engineers, energy-, water-, and resource-efficiency experts and the 

Research Team to help develop their high school building and academic model. In 2013-2014, this 

program would continue into the 9
th
 grade while the high school is under construction.   

 Both the facility and the academic program are student-centered, and designed to cultivate student 

learning and leadership, promote creativity and innovation and support high student achievement across 

all subjects and grade levels. The design program would be a series of project sessions, led by Drew 

Charter School and supported by Georgia Tech, aligned with the 2011 Race to the Top activity in 

partnership with the Georgia Tech School of Architecture. Through the 2011 grant, students in grades 6 

through 8 explore hour artistic design integrates with STEM concepts using the Common First Year 

program from the School of Architecture as the framework. The goal of this activity will be for 100% of 
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8
th
 graders in 2012-13 and 9

th
 graders in 2013-14 to participate in design programing over the course of 

the year.   

Activity #3: Support teachers and leaders during year one to continue to develop STEAM education 

and PBL strategies to ensure student achievement.  NTN provides on-going training and coaching 

during the duration of implementation (Years 1-4) for teachers and leaders.  Services included as part of 

the partnership contract include at least seven days of onsite coaching and 10 days of remote support per 

year; Webinars and online courses designed to meet specific needs of school staff in the areas of project 

development, school culture, classroom management, assessment and reviewing data; Bi-annual regional 

content training focused on deepening content mastery for teachers; Bi-annual Leadership Summit for the 

principal and key administration; tools and resources for school-wide data reports and benchmarking to 

track student progress; and access to Echo, a web-based learning management system for staff, students 

and parents to monitor and increase student achievement.    

Activity #4: Professional development for 9
th

 and 10
th

 grade teachers preparing for year two to support 

continued student progress in PBL and STEAM.  The Center for Teaching will coordinate and facilitate 

the professional development to train all the new 9th and 10th grade teachers in the summer of 2013 and 

2014 on how to work within a professional learning community (PLC) model. The premier training for 

PLC work is offered through an institute sponsored by Solution Tree. The PLC process supports faculty 

working as a team on building and implementing curriculum and assessments aligned to the curriculum. 

 The PLC model will fit seamlessly with the PBL instructional approach. Each cohort of teachers, 9th and 

10th grade, will be sent to the PLC at Work institute by Solution Tree. The institutes are offered at 

various times and locations around the United States. New teachers will also participate in the 2014 NTN 

annual conference with a dedicated “new teacher” program. The timeline will depend upon when the 

teams are hired and coordinating their schedules.  

GOAL 3: Ensure that Drew students are prepared to excel in 21
st
 century colleges and careers as 

evidenced high achievement on state and nationally-normed assessments and demonstrated 

mastery in critical thinking and problem solving, collaboration, communication and creativity and 

innovation. 

Activity #1: Georgia State will introduce 8
th

 graders to project-based music technology.  Year one of the 

grant will provide a creative project-based music technology program for 8th grade students for quarters 3 

and 4 at Charles R. Drew Charter School. This grade is particularly important, since they will be entering 

high school the following year and need excellent technology and creative project-based learning 

preparation and experience. The curriculum will focus on iPad ensemble composition and performance, 

which will be taught by a teaching artist well experienced with Drew Charter School and Georgia State 

University School of Music.  To inform the curriculum development and program evaluation for the 8
th
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grade music technology program, Dr. Carlisle will conduct a research study of the 5th grade music 

technology program currently under the first Race to the Top grant. The study will take place January - 

May 2013. The purpose of the study is to uncover fifth grade students’ developing musical understanding 

as they participate in a music technology curriculum focused upon creating original music. Students are 

working with iPad applications, an online music notation program entitled Noteflight, and an online 

coding program entitled Scratch (through the Massachusetts Institute for Technology).  

Activity #2: Support advanced student learning through Drew Summer Transition Program at Georgia 

Tech.  Georgia Tech CEISMC annually offers Summer Enrichment Programs to over 400 middle and 

high school students promoting science, technology, engineering and mathematics education. These 

enrichment programs are also useful as forums to pilot and evaluate new research-based activities. Drew 

Summer Transition Program will combine STEM focused summer enrichment with activities designed to 

help students be successful in high school. In addition to attending sessions focusing on study skills, time 

management, career awareness and PSAT preparation, students will explore how digital technologies are 

used to critically analyze and solve problems. Participants will become literate on how data is collected 

and processed using digital technologies, and make their own conclusions about real-world STEM-related 

issues.  All Drew students rising into 9
th
 grade in 2013 and 2014 will spend one-week (9-3 pm M-F) on 

the Georgia Tech campus.  Students will attend in cohorts of 25 per week over a four- week period.  

Georgia Tech graduate students will teach all courses. Students will also tour research labs on campus and 

utilize campus recreational facilities.  Two undergraduate students will act as student assistants.  

Activity #3: High School orientation and experiential learning retreat. Rising 9
th
 graders will be 

required to participate in a high school orientation, supporting their learning experience with Georgia 

Tech, on the Drew campus in the summer of 2013 and 2014.  The multi-day program will be designed 

around high school culture, building relationships with peers and faculty, understanding the high school 

schedule and expectations of PBL at Drew and developing class identity.  The first part of the orientation 

will be spent onsite with teachers, parents and students.  The second part of the orientation will be spent 

outside of the classroom and off the school’s campus for experiential learning opportunities and trust 

building activities.  Principal Don Doran is the former Executive Director of Outward Bound and brings a 

wealth of expertise around outdoor, experiential learning.  During year one of the grant, the DCSPE 

partners will engage in collaborative planning with hired high school faculty to develop the orientation 

program to be delivered during the summer of 2013 and 2014.      

Activity #4: Integrate music technology into 9
th

 grade with Georgia State.  Year Two of this grant will 

provide a creative project-based music technology program for 9th grade students at Charles R. Drew 

Charter School, in the event the Drew high school opens in 2013-2014 academic year. If the opening of 

the high school happens later than the 2013-2014 academic year, the curriculum will be provided for 
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grades 7 and 8 at Drew. The curriculum will focus on iPad ensemble composition and performance, 

which will be taught by a teaching artist well experienced with Drew Charter School and Georgia State 

University School of Music. As well, the curriculum will integrate computational thinking through coding 

programs such as Scratch (developed by the Massachusetts Institute of Technology) and for more 

advanced students, PureData. Both Scratch and PureData are free download programs that can be used on 

either PC or Mac platforms. The computational thinking component will be taught by a Georgia State 

University graduate music composition student well-versed in coding.   

 In year 2 of this grant, Dr. Carlisle will conduct a research study of the 9th grade music 

technology class. The purpose of the study will be to uncover ninth grade students’ development of 

computational thinking and musical understanding as they participate in a music technology curriculum 

focused upon creating original music. Students will be working with iPad applications, Noteflight, and 

Scratch. Advanced students may work with PureData. The findings from the study will inform the 

program evaluation.  

Activity #5: Measuring outcomes to prepare students to excel in 21
st
 century colleges and careers. 

During year one of the grant, Drew Charter and DCSPE partners will finalize the assessment plan, 

building on the charter amendment and stated assessment goals, to ensure assessment of 21
st
 century skills 

are measured as well as content knowledge aligned with the Common Core Georgia Performance 

Standards.  In year two, Drew Charter School and DCSPE partners will track and measure progress and 

growth on student mastery of 21
st
 century skills, including communication, collaboration, creativity and 

innovation and critical thinking and problem solving in year two of the grant.  Drew will use the College 

and Work Readiness Assessment and resources provided by New Tech Network to capture learning 

progress for all students on a regular basis.    Students will begin to develop learning portfolios in year 

two of the grant to provide evidence of learning outcomes.  
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL PARTNERS FOR EXPANSION 

RACE TO THE TOP INNOVATION FUND 

- DREW CHARTER SCHOOL: PRINCIPAL BIOGRAPHIES – 

APPENDIX 6 

 

Don Doran 

Don Doran, Principal of Drew Charter School, has an EdS in Leadership from Georgia State University 

and has served thirty-two years in Atlanta Public Schools as a teacher, curriculum specialist, principal, 

and as an Executive Director. As Executive Director, Don provided support to twenty-four schools to 

ensure the development, implementation, and assessment of school programs. He has been the principal at 

Drew for two years. 

 

Barbara Preuss 

Barbara Preuss, principal of the Primary and Elementary Academies, Ms. Preuss is an accomplished 

educator with more than 25 years of experience in elementary education. She serves as Drew's Academy 

Director for grades pre-K to 5. Before joining the Drew staff in 2006, Ms. Preuss was an instructional 

specialist who also served as the assistant vice principal at Atlanta's Centennial Place Elementary School. 

She has an education specialist (Ed.S) degree in administrative leadership and has been at Drew for five 

years. 

 

Gregory Leaphart 

Gregory Leaphart, principal of the Junior Academy, attended undergraduate school at Dillard University 

in New Orleans, LA. He attended graduate school at Troy University. He has worked with the Middle 

Age Learner for over 20 years in the Atlanta Public School System. He has been an administrator for the 

past 7 years and has been at Drew for two years. 
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

# of Students (Pre-K - 12) 992                1,266             1,398             1,530             1,662             1,694             1,726             1,776             1,826             1,851             1,876             

REVENUE:

Public Funding 9,583,475$    12,471,497$  13,884,012$  15,323,531$  16,790,451$  17,278,922$  17,775,484$  18,448,183$  19,132,559$  19,576,331$  20,027,065$  
Private Funding (5,092)            969,603         872,891         1,347,025      948,832         771,145         483,878         256,671         11,116           -                 -                 
Pre-K Funding 1,013,321      1,040,511      1,063,393      1,089,485      1,116,307      1,143,883      1,172,237      1,201,393      1,231,377      1,262,214      1,293,935      
Other 2,000             2,000             4,000             6,000             6,000             6,000             6,000             6,000             6,000             6,000             6,000             

Total Revenue 10,593,704$  14,483,610$  15,824,296$  17,766,041$  18,861,590$  19,199,951$  19,437,600$  19,912,247$  20,381,052$  20,844,545$  21,327,000$  

EXPENSES:

Personnel 6,954,940$    9,883,142$    10,709,003$  12,190,457$  12,781,566$  13,070,698$  13,194,074$  13,563,024$  13,855,426$  13,986,229$  14,118,340$  
Instruction 780,320         1,012,090      1,082,956      1,194,692      1,340,266      1,342,485      1,375,464      1,423,985      1,502,891      1,500,806      1,528,950      
Services and Supplies 1,532,580      1,925,988      2,199,266      2,425,239      2,659,138      2,668,927      2,712,127      2,730,310      2,787,889      2,790,379      2,833,165      
Facilities 312,543         621,880         769,678         866,168         964,314         973,957         983,697         993,534         1,003,469      1,013,504      1,023,639      
Pre-K Expenses 1,013,321      1,040,511      1,063,393      1,089,485      1,116,307      1,143,883      1,172,237      1,201,393      1,231,377      1,262,215      1,293,934      

Total Expenses 10,593,705$  14,483,610$  15,824,296$  17,766,041$  18,861,591$  19,199,951$  19,437,599$  19,912,247$  20,381,052$  20,553,132$  20,798,027$  

Net Income (Loss) (0)$                 (0)$                 0$                  (0)$                 (0)$                 (0)$                 0$                  0$                  0$                  291,413$       528,972$       

Beginning Operating Reserve 2,500,000      2,500,000$    2,499,999$    2,500,000$    2,500,000$    2,499,999$    2,499,999$    2,499,999$    2,500,000$    2,500,000$    2,791,413$    

Ending Operating Reserve 2,500,000$    2,499,999$    2,500,000$    2,500,000$    2,499,999$    2,499,999$    2,499,999$    2,500,000$    2,500,000$    2,791,413$    3,320,385$    

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.
TEN YEAR BUDGET

YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2014 - 2023

School Operations

DCS 10 Year Budget for Charter Renewal - 2012 Updated 5-29-12.xls

APPENDIX 7 - EXPANSION BUDGET 
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.
GRADES PRE-K - 12
TEN YEAR BUDGET
YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2014 - 2023

2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2021-2022 2022-20232015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

ASSUMPTIONS: 
Total Number of Students (Pre-K - 12) 992.00               1,266.00            1,398.00                1,530.00            1,662.00            1,694.00            1,726.00            1,776.00            1,826.00            1,851.00           1,876.00             
Number of Students - Pre-K 88.00                 88.00                 88.00                     88.00                 88.00                 88.00                 88.00                 88.00                 88.00                 88.00                88.00                  
Total Number of Students (K-12) 904.00               1,178.00            1,310.00                1,442.00            1,574.00            1,606.00            1,638.00            1,688.00            1,738.00            1,763.00           1,788.00             
Number of Students - PA (K-2) 330.00               396.00               396.00                   396.00               396.00               396.00               396.00               396.00               396.00               396.00              396.00                
Number of Students - EA (3-5) 286.00               382.00               389.00                   396.00               396.00               396.00               396.00               396.00               396.00               396.00              396.00                
Number of Students - JA (6-8) 288.00               300.00               325.00                   350.00               382.00               389.00               396.00               396.00               396.00               396.00              396.00                

b f d ( )

2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2021-2022 2022-20232015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021

Number of Students - SA (9-12) -                     100.00             200.00                 300.00             400.00             425.00              450.00             500.00             550.00             575.00            600.00               
Core Classes (Average) 5.50                   5.50                   5.50                       5.50                   5.50                   5.50                   5.50                   5.50                   5.50                   5.50                  5.50                    
Facility square footage 90,000.00          182,000.00        277,000.00            277,000.00        277,000.00        277,000.00        277,000.00        277,000.00        277,000.00        277,000.00       277,000.00         
Number of FTEs 90.00                 128.00               138.00                   154.00               160.00               163.00               163.00               166.00               168.00               168.00              168.00                
Full Time Employees (eligible for benefits) 85.00                 127.00               137.00                   153.00               159.00               162.00               162.00               165.00               167.00               167.00              167.00                
Number of Administrators 6.00                   15.00                 15.00                     17.00                 17.00                 17.00                 17.00                 17.00                 17.00                 17.00                17.00                  
Number of Teachers 59.50                 77.00                 84.00                     93.00                 99.00                 99.00                 99.00                 102.00               104.00               104.00              104.00                
Number of Other Instructional Staff 19.50                 24.00                 26.00                     30.00                 30.00                 32.00                 32.00                 32.00                 32.00                 32.00                32.00                  
Number of Clerical Staff 3.00                   9.00                 10.00                   11.00               11.00               12.00                12.00               12.00               12.00               12.00              12.00                 
Number of Maintenance/Food Service Staff 2.00                   3.00                   3.00                       3.00                   3.00                   3.00                   3.00                   3.00                   3.00                   3.00                  3.00                    
Inflationary Increase % 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%
Salary Increase % 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%
Student Teacher Ratio 15                      15                      16                          16                      16                      16                      17                      17                      17                      17                     17                       
Per Pupil Revenue - (PA, EA, JA) 10,392$             10,497$             10,602$                 10,708$             10,815$             10,923$             11,032$             11,143$             11,254$             11,367$            11,480$              
Per Pupil Revenue - (SA) -$                   9,090$               9,181$                   9,273$               9,365$               9,459$               9,554$               9,649$               9,746$               9,843$              9,942$                
Average teacher salary 59,400$             60,000$             60,600$                 61,206$             61,818$             62,436$             63,061$             63,691$             64,328$             64,971$            65,621$              
Janitorial Supplies & Services Cost/Square Foot 1.71$                 1.73$                 1.75$                     1.76$                 1.78$                 1.80$                 1.82$                 1.84$                 1.85$                 1.87$                1.89$                  
Maintenance & Repair Cost/Square Foot 1 20$ 1 21$ 1 22$ 1 23$ 1 25$ 1 26$ 1 27$ 1 28$ 1 30$ 1 31$ 1 32$Maintenance & Repair Cost/Square Foot 1.20$                 1.21$                1.22$                    1.23$                1.25$                1.26$                1.27$                1.28$                1.30$                1.31$               1.32$                  
Utilities Cost/Square Foot 1.69$                 1.71$                 1.72$                     1.74$                 1.76$                 1.77$                 1.79$                 1.81$                 1.83$                 1.85$                1.86$                  
Fire & Security Cost/Square Foot 0.41$                 0.41$                 0.41$                     0.42$                 0.42$                 0.43$                 0.43$                 0.44$                 0.44$                 0.44$                0.45$                  
Square Feet in Buildings 90,000               182,000             277,000                 277,000             277,000             277,000             277,000             277,000             277,000             277,000            277,000              

REVENUES 
Per Pupil Revenue (local and state share) 9,394,395$        12,224,766$      13,604,367$          15,010,337$      16,443,066$      16,920,437$      17,405,710$      18,062,228$      18,730,136$      19,163,517$     19,603,692$       
2% District Administrative Fee (187,888)            (244,495)            (272,087)                (300,207)            (328,861)            (338,409)            (348,114)            (361,245)            (374,603)            (383,270)           (392,074)             
Title I 376,968             491,226             551,733                 613,400             676,246             696,895             717,888             747,200             777,026             796,085            815,447              
Private Foundation/Fundraising (5,092)                969,603           872,891               1,347,025        948,832           771,145             483,878           256,671           11,116             -                  -                     
Pre-K Funding 1,013,321          1,040,511          1,063,393              1,089,485          1,116,307          1,143,883          1,172,237          1,201,393          1,231,377          1,262,214         1,293,935           
Earned Interest 2,000                 2,000                 4,000                     6,000                 6,000                 6,000                 6,000                 6,000                 6,000                 6,000                6,000                  

Total Revenues 10,593,704$      14,483,610$      15,824,296$          17,766,041$      18,861,590$      19,199,951$      19,437,600$      19,912,247$      20,381,052$      20,844,545$     21,327,000$       

EXPENDITURES 
PERSONNEL 

Principal 148,500$           150,000$           151,500$               153,015$           154,545$           156,091$           157,652$           159,228$           160,820$           162,429$          164,053$            
A i t P i i l 247 500 375 000 378 750 382 538 386 363 390 227 394 129 398 070 402 051 406 071 410 132Associate Principal 247,500             375,000           378,750               382,538           386,363           390,227             394,129           398,070           402,051           406,071          410,132             
Dean -                     150,000             151,500                 227,250             229,523             231,818             234,136             236,477             238,842             241,230            243,643              
Director of Curriculum 108,900             220,000             222,200                 444,422             448,866             453,355             457,888             462,467             467,092             471,763            476,481              
Nurse 56,430               114,000             115,140                 116,291             117,454             118,629             119,815             121,013             122,223             123,446            124,680              
Technology Support 49,500               250,000             252,500                 255,025             257,575             260,151             262,753             265,380             268,034             270,714            273,421              
Teachers 2,702,700          3,480,000          3,878,400              4,345,626          4,698,173          4,745,154          4,792,606          4,967,914          5,146,250          5,197,712         5,249,689           
Substitutes 79,000               101,000             110,000                 123,000             129,000             131,000             131,000             134,000             136,000             136,000            136,000              
Music/Arts/PE 831,600             960,000             969,600                 1,040,502          1,112,725          1,123,852          1,135,091          1,210,133          1,222,234          1,234,457         1,246,801           
Athletics/Extracurricular Coaches 29,700               45,000               45,450                   61,206               61,818               78,045               78,826               79,614               80,410               81,214              82,026                
Guidance Counselor 89,100               120,000             181,800                 183,618             185,454             187,309             189,182             191,074             192,984             194,914            196,863              
Social Worker 49,500               50,000               50,500                   51,005               51,515               52,030               52,551               53,076               53,607               54,143              54,684                
College Counselor -                     -                     -                         61,206               61,818               62,436               63,061               63,691               64,328               64,971              65,621                
Special Education Coordinator/Teacher 459,360             464,000             468,640                 532,492             537,817             543,195             548,627             554,114             559,655             565,251            570,904              
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.
GRADES PRE-K - 12
TEN YEAR BUDGET
YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2014 - 2023

2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2021-2022 2022-20232015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2021-2022 2022-20232015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021

Gifted/Advanced Placement Teacher 118,800             120,000             181,800                 244,824             247,272             249,745             252,242             254,765             257,312             259,886            262,484              
Media Specialist 59,400               120,000             121,200                 122,412             123,636             124,872             126,121             127,382             128,656             129,943            131,242              
Assistant Media Specialist -                     30,000               60,600                   61,206               61,818               62,436               63,061               63,691               64,328               64,971              65,621                
Learning Specialist/Instructional Coach 360,360             448,000             452,480                 514,130             519,272             582,738             588,566             594,451             600,396             606,400            612,464              
Registrar 39,600               80,000               80,800                   81,608               82,424               83,248               84,081               84,922               85,771               86,629              87,495                
Office Assistant 49,748               250,000             303,000                 357,035             360,605             416,242             420,404             424,608             428,854             433,143            437,474              
COO 127,067             170,000             171,700                 173,417             175,151             176,903             178,672             180,458             182,263             184,086            185,926              

iMaintenance 45,540               92,000             92,920                 93,849             94,788             95,736              96,693             97,660             98,636             99,623            100,619             
Food Service Monitor 24,750               25,000               25,250                   25,503               25,758               26,015               26,275               26,538               26,803               27,071              27,342                
Retirement Benefits 538,481             761,084             824,562                 940,025             986,016             1,008,210          1,018,164          1,047,121          1,070,187          1,080,757         1,091,432           
Health Benefits 612,000             914,400             992,304                 1,113,467          1,162,690          1,190,373          1,196,516          1,224,321          1,244,989          1,251,319         1,257,712           
FICA 1,547                 7,875                 8,453                     9,281                 9,672                 9,813                 9,830                 10,034               10,175               10,192              10,209                
Medicare 80,164               113,303             122,753                 139,942             146,789             150,093             151,575             155,886             159,319             160,893            162,482              
Bonus 55,981               77,130               83,557                   95,282               99,944               102,202             103,224             106,167             108,516             109,601            110,697              
Other Payroll Expenses/Taxes 138,214             195,350             211,643                 241,280             253,084             258,781             261,336             268,768             274,689             277,402            280,142              

Total Personnel 6 954 940$ 9 883 142$ 10 709 003$ 12 190 457$ 12 781 566$ 13 070 698$ 13 194 074$ 13 563 024$ 13 855 426$ 13 986 229$ 14 118 340$Total Personnel 6,954,940$        9,883,142$       10,709,003$         12,190,457$     12,781,566$     13,070,698$      13,194,074$     13,563,024$     13,855,426$     13,986,229$    14,118,340$       

INSTRUCTION 
Textbooks 82,200$             158,350$           162,589$               166,844$           171,450$           163,562$           168,180$           175,054$           181,935$           185,697$          189,465$            
Classroom paper and supplies 109,920             143,360             161,423                 179,833             198,632             204,780             211,032             219,777             228,676             234,346            240,108              
Computers 128,800             140,000             100,000                 100,000             100,000             100,000             100,000             100,000             100,000             100,000            100,000              
Software 42,120               55,010               62,191                   69,510               77,005               79,440               81,916               85,389               88,923               91,166              93,444                
Field Trips 88,400               118,900             144,643                 170,396             197,200             204,008             210,820             221,236             231,657             237,081            242,510              
Travel/Out of State Field Study 57,600               80,000               105,000                 130,000             156,400             162,800             169,200             179,200             189,200             194,200            199,200              
Instructional Equipment 15,000               15,000               15,000                   15,000               45,000               15,000               15,000               15,000               45,000               15,000              15,000                
Library and Media Center 18,080               23,560               26,462                   29,420               32,434               33,424               34,431               35,837               37,267               38,182              39,110                
Student Assessment 9,040                 11,780               13,231                   14,710               16,217               16,712               17,216               17,918               18,634               19,091              19,555                
Classroom Furniture  (Rental for Transitional Year Only) 40,000               40,000               40,000                   40,000               40,000               40,000               40,000               40,000               40,000               40,000              40,000                
Extracurricular Activities Other than Athletics 13,360               17,780               21,185                   24,656               28,302               29,418               30,553               32,185               33,847               34,863              35,895                
PE Equipment/Art Supplies/Music Supplies 67,800               88,350               99,233                   110,324             121,627             125,341             129,117             134,388             139,753             143,181            146,663              
Work Study/Americorps 108,000             120,000             132,000                 144,000             156,000             168,000             168,000             168,000             168,000             168,000            168,000              

Total Instruction 780,320$           1,012,090$        1,082,956$            1,194,692$        1,340,266$        1,342,485$        1,375,464$        1,423,985$        1,502,891$        1,500,806$       1,528,950$         

SERVICES & SUPPLIES 
Student Uniforms -$                   -$                   -$                       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                    
Athletic Program 60,000               80,000               100,000                 120,000             120,000             120,000             120,000             120,000             120,000             120,000            120,000              
Office Supplies 25,450               36,338               39,731                   45,025               47,329               48,739               49,227               50,674               51,824               52,343              52,866                
Office Furniture 9,900                 10,000               10,100                   10,201               10,303               10,406               10,510               10,615               10,721               10,829              10,937                
Office Computers and Software -                     -                     20,000                   -                     20,000               -                     20,000               -                     20,000               -                    20,000                
Printing and Copy Services 42,120               55,010               62,191                   69,510               77,005               79,440               81,916               85,389               88,923               91,166              93,444                
Postage and Shipping 3,616                 4,712               5,292                   5,884               6,487               6,685                6,886               7,167               7,453               7,636              7,822                 g pp g
Bookkeeping & Audit 39,600               40,000               40,400                   40,804               41,212               41,624               42,040               42,461               42,885               43,314              43,747                
Payroll Services 26,380               37,575               40,981                   46,287               48,604               50,027               50,527               51,988               53,151               53,683              54,219                
Banking Fees 1,980                 2,000                 2,020                     2,040                 2,061                 2,081                 2,102                 2,123                 2,144                 2,166                2,187                  
Legal Services 9,900                 10,000               10,100                   10,201               10,303               10,406               10,510               10,615               10,721               10,829              10,937                
Liability & Property Insurance 87,320               113,910             128,346                 143,059             158,089             163,000             167,993             174,981             182,091             186,620            191,220              
Staff Development 93,500               140,000             164,125                 202,379             217,911             225,191             227,443             237,522             247,202             249,674            252,170              
Gifted, Special Education and Health Services 87,320               113,910             128,346                 143,059             158,089             163,000             167,993             174,981             182,091             186,620            191,220              
Board/Community Development 9,900                 10,000               10,100                   10,201               10,303               10,406               10,510               10,615               10,721               10,829              10,937                
Staff Recruitment 19 800 20 000 20 200 20 402 20 606 20 812 21 020 21 230 21 443 21 657 21 874Staff Recruitment 19,800               20,000             20,200                 20,402             20,606             20,812              21,020             21,230             21,443             21,657            21,874               
Student Recruitment 9,900                 10,000               10,100                   10,201               10,303               10,406               10,510               10,615               10,721               10,829              10,937                
Tech support 9,900                 10,000               10,100                   10,201               10,303               10,406               10,510               10,615               10,721               10,829              10,937                
Telecom/Cell Phone/Internet service 19,800               20,000               20,200                   20,402               20,606               20,812               21,020               21,230               21,443               21,657              21,874                
Food Service -                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                    -                      
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DREW CHARTER SCHOOL, INC.
GRADES PRE-K - 12
TEN YEAR BUDGET
YEARS ENDING JUNE 30, 2014 - 2023

2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2021-2022 2022-20232015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2021-2022 2022-20232015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021

Transportation -                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                    -                      
Health Supplies 4,520                 5,890                 6,616                     7,355                 8,108                 8,356                 8,608                 8,959                 9,317                 9,545                9,778                  
Pest Control 9,900                 10,000               10,100                   10,201               10,303               10,406               10,510               10,615               10,721               10,829              10,937                
Janitorial Supplies & Services 153,252             314,200             392,890                 443,948             495,987             500,947             505,956             511,016             516,126             521,287            526,500              
Waste Disposal 3,564                 3,600                 3,636                     3,672                 3,709                 3,746                 3,784                 3,821                 3,860                 3,898                3,937                  
Management Fee 755,458             828,843             913,194                 999,203             1,100,000          1,100,000          1,100,000          1,100,000          1,100,000          1,100,000         1,100,000           
Marketing 49,500               50,000               50,500                   51,005               51,515               52,030               52,551               53,076               53,607               54,143              54,684                

Total Service & Supplies 1,532,580$        1,925,988$        2,199,266$            2,425,239$        2,659,138$        2,668,927$        2,712,127$        2,730,310$        2,787,889$        2,790,379$       2,833,165$         

FACILITIES 
Land Planning -$                   -$                   -$                       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                  -$                    
Rent/lease/mortgage/Construction Costs -                     -                     -                         -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                    -                      
Grounds Maintenance 17,325               17,500               32,625                   42,751               52,879               53,408               53,942               54,481               55,026               55,576              56,132                
Maintenance & Repair 107,514             220,000             274,569                 309,983             346,078             349,539             353,034             356,565             360,130             363,732            367,369              
Utilities 151,173             309,760             387,118                 437,314             488,476             493,361             498,294             503,277             508,310             513,393            518,527              
Fire & Security 36 531 74 620 75 366 76 120 76 881 77 650 78 426 79 211 80 003 80 803 81 611Fire & Security 36,531               74,620             75,366                 76,120             76,881             77,650              78,426             79,211             80,003             80,803            81,611               

Total Facilities 312,543$           621,880$           769,678$               866,168$           964,314$           973,957$           983,697$           993,534$           1,003,469$        1,013,504$       1,023,639$         

PRE-K EXPENSES
Salaries and Benefits 739,508             754,029             768,839                 783,946             799,355             815,072             831,103             847,455             864,135             881,147            898,500              
Consultant Services 123,093             129,783             136,748                 143,991             151,523             159,357             167,504             175,978             184,790             193,954            203,485              
Non-Personnel Expenses 56,678               60,935               60,253                   62,132               64,076               66,087               68,168               70,320               72,547               74,851              77,236                
Research and Development Expenses 94,042               95,763               97,554                   99,416               101,353             103,367             105,462             107,640             109,906             112,262            114,712              

Total Pre-K Expenses 1,013,321$        1,040,511$       1,063,393$           1,089,485$       1,116,307$       1,143,883$        1,172,237$       1,201,393$       1,231,377$       1,262,215$      1,293,934$         

Total Expenditures 10,593,705$      14,483,610$      15,824,296$          17,766,041$      18,861,591$      19,199,951$      19,437,599$      19,912,247$      20,381,052$      20,553,132$     20,798,027$       

Surplus (Deficit) (0)$                     (0)$                     0$                          (0)$                     (0)$                     (0)$                     0$                      0$                      0$                      291,413$          528,972$            

Cash Balance
Beginning Cash 2,500,000$        2,500,000$        2,499,999$            2,500,000$        2,500,000$        2,499,999$        2,499,999$        2,499,999$        2,500,000$        2,500,000$       2,791,413$         
Net Surplus (Deficit) (0)                       (0)                     0                           (0)                     (0)                     (0)                      0                      0                      0                      291,413          528,972             Net Su p us ( e c t) (0) (0) 0 (0) (0) (0) 0 0 0 9 , 3 5 8,97
Ending Cash 2,500,000          2,499,999          2,500,000              2,500,000          2,499,999          2,499,999          2,499,999          2,500,000          2,500,000          2,791,413         3,320,385           

Note:  Revenue and expenses associated with the Pre-K program at Drew Charter School are not included in any projected funding from APS.  Pre-K is 100% funded from sources outside of Atlanta Public Schools. 
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